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n
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Company Overview
Since 1939 State Trustees (including its predecessors) has played an
important role in the lives of Victorians. Through a diverse range of
products and services, we help people with their financial needs so they
can make the most of their opportunities and protect the important
things in their lives.
State Trustees is well known as a specialist in preparing Wills. In fact, we
write more Wills and administer more Deceased Estates than any other
organisation in Victoria.
While these are the services State Trustees is best known for, we also offer
a diverse range of professional services including Trustee, Executor and
Attorneyship services, along with astute financial advice and management
– all aimed at helping Victorians protect and build their assets.
At State Trustees, we have always balanced our commercial enterprise
with our community obligations. We believe every Victorian deserves
access to support they can trust regardless of their personal circumstances.
That’s why we provide expert financial and legal assistance by acting as
administrator for more than 9,000 people in the community who are unable
to look after their own affairs due to disability, mental illness or other
circumstances.

Because we’re owned by the State of
Victoria and we also compete in the
commercial world, you can be sure we
are reliable, trustworthy and professional
while providing competitive products
and services.
State Trustees makes a significant contribution to the social good of
Victoria. An important part of our contribution is to invest back into the
community. Charitable projects supporting the Victorian community
include n our connected art exhibition for artists with a disability or
experience of mental illness n a comprehensive community grants
program supporting a range of worthwhile causes n the State Trustees
Charity Ball and n Wholehearted Giving Program, which employees
can make financial contributions to.

We believe every
Victorian deserves
access to support
they can trust
regardless of
their personal
circumstances.

We also take an active role in advocating for our clients on issues that
affect them, such as financial elder abuse, ageing, homelessness and
disability.
Our employees are highly skilled, experienced and motivated. They care
about their clients and we achieve strong levels of employee engagement
and satisfaction.
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Our Purpose,
Vision & Values
Our Purpose
To help Victorians with their financial needs so
they can make the most of their opportunities

Our Vision
To be relevant, accessible and valued in the
hearts and minds of Victorians

Our Values
n

Wholehearted > Committed, caring and united
Acting as one business with a clear purpose, ensuring our clients’
interests and those of the broader Victorian community are at the
heart of everything we do.

n

Understanding > Empathetic and compassionate
Understanding client needs and demonstrating this by delivering
empathy and compassion into every relationship.

n

Commercial > Professional, expert and client driven
Recognising that we operate in a commercial world. Being client focused,
delivering expert and professional advice in all areas of the business,
ensuring sustainable profitability and growth.

n

Integrity > Ethical and trusted
Always applying an ethical approach and creating relationships
with all clients, colleagues and stakeholders built on trust
and honesty.
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OUR PURPOSE, VISION & VALUES

Chair’s
Report
As another year passes and we move one step closer to
our vision that is encapsulated in the STL2020 strategy, I
first and foremost want to express my praise and gratitude
to the whole team at State Trustees. Transforming our
business to meet the vision of the STL2020 strategy has
meant, for many, new ways of doing business and new
places to do business from. The team has risen to the
challenge, and the support and feedback they continually
give on our future direction and the changes we’re going
through, are vital to our success.

Decentralising our service delivery
Our STL2020 strategy to decentralise our service delivery
model and upgrade our head office accommodation is
making great progress. Now, more than a year since we
opened our Dandenong office, our presence in the south
east is proving to be a great asset for clients nearby and in
surrounding suburbs. We’re building strong relationships
in the community evidenced by our involvement with
many local programs working with people who benefit
from our services.
Since our Bendigo retail suite was officially opened
on 19 October 2010 the reception we have received has
exceeded our expectations. We’ve been delighted to hear
that our clients and stakeholders were looking forward to
the opening of our office, and the demand for our services
is testament to this.
In addition to our new office in Bendigo, we’ve continued
to deliver a strong regional program, visiting towns such
as Ballarat, Bairnsdale, Shepparton, Mildura, Traralgon,
Warrnambool, Wondonga and Geelong.
The way clients have embraced our greater presence in
regional Victoria endorses our strategy and confirms that
taking our services to as many clients as possible and
improving our accessibility, has been the right move for
our organisation.
State Trustees also announced this year that we will be
further expanding our operations in Bendigo. A new
purpose-built office, leased from the City of Greater
Bendigo, will provide employment for approximately 100
people and include a mix of retail services and operational
functions. Again, the support and reception from the City
of Greater Bendigo and the wider community during our
planning and negotiations has been outstanding. With
a great proportion of the positions in our new Bendigo
Regional Office to be filled locally, our move supports the
continued growth of the local economy.

The way clients have
embraced our greater
presence in regional Victoria
endorses our strategy and
confirms that taking our
services to as many clients
as possible and improving
our accessibility, has been
the right move for our
organisation.
Relocating Head Office
The final component of our STL2020 strategy, the
relocation of Head Office, is also well on track. In October
2010, we announced that State Trustees will relocate its
Head Office to a state-of-the-art facility at Footscray.
Along with our Head Office operations, the building will
include a client service centre. By moving out of the CBD,
this further reflects our commitment to being closer and
more accessible to our clients, and to decentralising
across multiple sales and service points.
In close proximity to Footscray railway station, the
landmark development will be an active, vibrant and
attractive place for our employees to work and our
clients to visit.
In preparation for our move to Footscray, targeted for
February 2014, we are making major investments in
technology that will facilitate better processes for our
people and improved business efficiencies, which will
support a decentralised business model.

CHAIR’S REPORT
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Recognising strong performance

Governance remains a key focus

This year, it has been extremely rewarding to see some of
the fantastic achievements of our team at State Trustees
recognised publicly – for project management skills,
website design and genealogical services. It’s great to
see the calibre and experience of our employees being
recognised through industry awards.

With State Trustees’ clear commitment to strong
corporate governance, the Board once again opted
to complete a Board effectiveness questionnaire.
Administered externally this year to ensure a robust
process, the results allow us to constantly improve our
performance and processes and be at the leading edge
of governance and risk frameworks.

Our role in the community
As one of our strategic themes for 2010-2013 is client
and community engagement, I’m very proud of the work
our people have been doing to address key issues that
affect our clients’ lives. In looking after the day-to-day
financial well-being of our clients through the products
and services we offer, our people are continually placed in
a position where they’re exposed to events that present
risk or hardship for clients. This has led us to develop
valuable insights into the issues our customers face –
issues such as financial elder abuse and homelessness
– and to play an active role in advocating on behalf of our
clients and the Victorian public, through participation in
law reform, commissioning of research and education of
the community.
Many of our long standing community programs again
proved highly successful this year. The State Trustees
Charity Ball 2011 raised a record $87,168 for Alzheimer’s
Australia Vic, providing valuable funding for their Volunteers
Program. connectedTM, our art exhibition for new and
emerging artists with a disability or experience of mental
illness, continued to inspire visitors with outstanding
examples of people expressing themselves through
various art media.
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Financial position
Our financial performance during the year resulted in
a before-tax profit of $726,544. This is an excellent result
considering the recent market downturn and unbudgeted
events that have had a financial impact.
On behalf of the Board, I‘d like to thank our Managing
Director, Tony Fitzgerald, and the whole team at State
Trustees for another massive year of work. In particular,
the meticulous planning that is taking place now and the
dedication to executing these plans with exceptional
diligence, will be evident as changes come to fruition in
the next three years. We are making strong progress and
I look forward to the exciting organisation that evolves
as part of our journey to 2020.

Julie Elliott
Chair

Managing
Director’s
Report
I’m pleased to deliver the 2011 State Trustees Annual
Report. Despite a challenging external environment
highlighted by a softer residential property market, subdued
retail consumer sentiment and flat equities performance,
State Trustees has delivered a commendable result.
Our profit before tax for the 2010/11 financial year was
$726,544. This financial performance was sound and we
have absorbed some recent market volatility and some
unbudgeted expenditure during 2010/11. We were
particularly pleased to have exceeded the revenue
budget for the year.
While it’s pleasing to deliver a positive result overall, a key
impact on our financial results is our ongoing obligations
under the five year Community Services Agreement (CSA),
which governs the funding and provision of services to
represented persons.
The current agreement expires in 2012. The Essential
Services Commission, which submitted a report of its
review of State Trustees to Department of Treasury and
Finance in October 2010, found that funding arrangements
could be improved to address cost and funding risks. In
particular the Commission findings recommend not only
alternative and more efficient models to be explored, but
also the option of a shorter CSA contract duration with
realistic capital and cost escalations built in. State Trustees
welcomes the opportunity to move the CSA to a more
sustainable footing while ensuring we continue to provide
high levels of service to this important and vulnerable
sector of our community.
In 2010/11, the Victorian Law Reform Commission (VLRC)
continued a review of the Guardianship and Administration
Act 1986. State Trustees is one of the key organisations
consulted by the VLRC throughout the review, to help
identify ways to improve the laws and bring them up to
date with community needs and expectations.
In October 2010, I attended the World Guardianship
Congress in Japan. It was gratifying to observe that
Australia has a leading edge guardianship model in
place – one which makes a clear distinction between
guardianship and administration, and the specialised
skills required to perform each of these roles. Melbourne
was awarded hosting rights for the next international
Congress to be held in 2012.

Our brand is considered a
good fit with our corporate
values, and State Trustees
is perceived to be a stable,
reliable, trusted and
impartial organisation.
Continuing to support the Victorian community
connected10TM, our annual art exhibition, was once
again an outstanding success. Now in its ninth year,
the connected exhibition continues to be an important
avenue through which new and emerging artists with a
disability or an experience of mental illness can showcase
their work and be formally recognised for their artistic
talents.
The State Trustees Charity Ball was held again in June 2011.
Over 450 guests attended including the Hon Kim Wells
MLA, Treasurer and the Hon David Davis MLC, Minister for
Health & Ageing. The night was a huge success with over
$87,000 raised for charity partner Alzheimer’s Australia
Vic. The funds raised will contribute to the training of
volunteers whose role is crucial in supporting people
suffering from Alzheimer’s, and their families and carers.
Sadly, falling ill is not the only concern for many older
Victorians. Financial elder abuse is on the rise and the
State Trustees-commissioned research study ‘Protecting
Elders Assets Study (PEAS)’ undertaken by Monash
University is helping to shed light on this ‘silent crime’.
Three further reports were delivered this year, with the
findings generating significant attention in the media,
as well as from government, professional and community
organisations. This research provides essential data and
information if we are to understand the best ways to
reduce, prevent and remedy the growing problem of
financial elder abuse.

MANAGING DIRECTOR’S REPORT
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Following the launch of a new brand in early 2010, research
was undertaken this year to assess how it has been received
and what our brand means to Victorians. While our brand
is considered a good fit with our corporate values, and
State Trustees is perceived to be a stable, reliable, trusted
and impartial organisation, there is also potential for
greater recognition of our brand with current and potential
clients. Marketing and brand awareness campaigns will
therefore become a stronger focus for State Trustees in
the year ahead to lift our profile in key markets.
Research was also commissioned this year to examine
perceptions of Victorian Civil Administrative Tribunal (VCAT)
members towards State Trustees and our service offering.
While we were perceived to be impartial experts who act in
the best interests of clients, an opportunity to improve
communication pathways between our organisations was
identified. This has led to the development of a number of
initiatives, in conjunction with VCAT, which are planned
for implementation in 2011.

In closing, I want to formally thank all of our employees for
their commitment and hard work in 2011. We have a truly
talented and committed group of people at State Trustees,
and this has been evidenced by some wonderful external
recognition and awards received for excellent work in the
areas of project management and website design.
I’m proud that our organisation was able to receive such
high praise for its achievements in these fields, and of the
efforts of everyone throughout the year.
Finally, I would like to thank the Board for its ongoing
support and strategic leadership as we continue working
towards achievement of our 2020 vision.

Anthony (Tony) G Fitzgerald
Managing Director
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Our Corporate
Leadership Team
Tony Fitzgerald
BBus CPA MAICD

Managing Director
Joined State Trustees: June 2002

Maurice Cruz
MBA

Acting General Manager,
Client Services
Joined State Trustees: August 2006

Andrew Lloyde
General Manager,
Client Operations
Joined State Trustees: June 2003

Prue Willsford
LLB

General Manager,
Corporate Operations
Joined State Trustees: February 2003

John Brennan
MBus MAICD CAHRI

General Manager, Strategy
& Network Development
Vicki Hood

Joined State Trustees: May 2005

B.Com FAIM FFin

General Manager,
Sales & Marketing
Joined State Trustees: May 2011

Angela Burton
Adv Dip.Acc

General Manager,
Personal Financial Solutions
Joined State Trustees: July 2003

Andrew Schuette
BA (CJA) BBSc (Hons)

General Manager,
People & Culture
Joined State Trustees: February 2003

CORPORATE LEADERSHIP TEAM
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Strategic
Overview
The achievements showcased in this Annual
Report reflect our priorities outlined in the
2010–2013 Corporate Plan as well as our
focus towards the future.
The 2010 to 2013 Corporate Strategy includes
five key result areas:

n

Growth
> To achieve growth in our core and client
generation businesses.

n

Client Advocacy and
Community Engagement
> To deliver our brand essence of ‘your

interests at heart’ and maximise our
connections to the Victorian community.

n

Financial Sustainability
> To ensure our business fundamentals are

sound by providing efficient and effective
services allowing us the capacity to grow.

n

People
> To create and sustain a workplace that
supports our Corporate Strategy.

n

Service Excellence
> To provide excellent client service that

enhances our client relationships and
reputation, and supports the growth of
our business.

Our strategies and implementation plans
are monitored regularly through performance
reporting mechanisms that review progress
against objectives and specific performance
measures and targets aligned to our
Corporate Strategy.
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Our Performance
At State Trustees, we have a comprehensive
measurement and reporting framework that
encompasses strategic and business performance.
This section provides a snapshot of some of our
key metrics while other achievements and metrics
are included throughout the annual report.

Financial Performance
– Revenue and Profit
Revenue
$60,000,000
$50,000,000
$40,000,000
$30,000,000
$20,000,000
$10,000,000
$0

2008/2009

2009/2010

2010/2011

Our revenue is derived from the fees we charge for our products
and services and government contracts. A large portion of our
revenue comes from capital and income commission. As such the
impact of changing asset values, including property, equity markets
and interest rates flow through to our financial performance.

Profit
$2,500,000

$2,000,000

$1,500,000

$1,000,000

$500,000

$0

2008/2009

Profit after tax

2009/2010

2010/2011

Earnings before corporate
investments, strategic items & tax

Over the three-year period our Earnings before corporate
investments, strategic items and tax have continued to decline.
Initially this was due to the impact of the global financial crisis and,
subsequently, the unprofitable nature of our Community Services
Agreement. Earnings before corporate investments, strategic items
and tax have dropped from $2.2m in 2008/09 to $1.9m in 2009/10
and now, in 2010/11, are $1.2m. In addition to this we are continuing
our strategic focus on being more accessible to Victorians. This has
had an impact on our profit after tax, which currently sits at $573,000.

STRATEGIC OVERVIEW & PERFORMANCE

Products and Services
The number of Will documents produced

The percentage of Wills where State Trustees
is nominated sole or co-Executor
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Wills: State Trustees sole or co-Executor

The number of new Deceased Estates
1,190

Eighty three percent of clients who wrote a Will with us nominated
State Trustees as sole or co-Executor of their estate.

The percentage of new VCAT orders
50
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83%
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Total Wills written

During 2010/2011 we wrote 2,483 Wills, of which 1,213 were new Wills
and 1,270 were for clients who updated a previous Will written by us.

1,200

81%

39.1%

40.1%

0
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Actual
Actual
Percentage of new VCAT Orders

2009/2010
2010/2011
Number of Estates

The number of new Deceased Estates increased from 1,190 in
2009/2010 to 1,207 in 2010/2011.

The number of new orders directed to State Trustees from VCAT
as a percentage of the total number of VCAT orders, increased slightly
this year.

Client Feedback
Each year State Trustees gathers client feedback across our Retail Services and Personal Financial Solutions (PFS) divisions
via the Client Value Index (CVI) survey. In 2011 we spoke to nearly 1,500 clients about their experience with State Trustees
and our performance against expectations.

CVI score > Personal Financial Solutions clients

100

100

80

CVI score > Retail clients

82%
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CVI: Personal Financial Solutions clients

Our Personal Financial Solutions clients are those whose financial and
legal affairs we administer under a VCAT order. The PFS CVI score measures
both the perception that State Trustees acts in the best interests of clients,
and willingness to recommend us to others. Both clients and members of
their support network are surveyed.

68%

70%

2009/2010
2010/2011
CVI: Retail clients

Our retail clients use Will writing and Executor services, Trustee,
Attorneyship, Financial Planning and Taxation services. The Retail Services
CVI score measures preference for State Trustees over competitors,
willingness to buy more of our services and likelihood of recommending
us to others.

STRATEGIC OVERVIEW & PERFORMANCE
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Essential
products,
exceptional
services
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ESSENTIAL PRODUCTS, EXCEPTIONAL SERVICES

Wills and Deceased Estate
Administration – what we’re
best known for
Since inception, State Trustees has prepared over
100,000 Wills. It’s no surprise then that we’ve developed
strong expertise in Will preparation and our clients value
the knowledge and advice we provide.

Building strong relationships

Research undertaken this year reconfirms that the
State Trustees brand is most strongly associated with
our specialisation in Will writing and Deceased Estate
Administration.

State Trustees partners with a range of organisations who
refer potential clients to us. One of these is Victoria Police.
Often when someone dies, the Police are contacted and
their first priority is to identify who has passed away and
notify next of kin. This is where State Trustees can help by
assisting in locating the next of kin, securing the property
and contacting the executor.

This year we prepared 2,483 Wills, with 83% choosing to
nominate us as sole or co-executor.

This is of great assistance to the Police, saving them time,
freeing them up to perform other functions.

Choosing an executor is a very important decision and
the Will-maker should be confident that the person named
as executor wants to take on this sometimes onerous task,
and has the time, skills and ability to fulfil the role.

For State Trustees, it is often at this stage that the
nominated executor recognises that they are unable to
perform the role and may decide to transfer executorship
to State Trustees.

At State Trustees we have a team dedicated to administering estates, in many cases, where the private executor has
relinquished executorship before Probate is granted. There
are a number of reasons why a private executor may do
this, such as:

For example, on one occasion State Trustees found that
the deceased had one remaining sibling, a sister. She was
in her 90s and residing in a nursing home, and was also
the executor and primary beneficiary of the estate. The
deceased had a large portfolio of assets as well as many
sentimental and collector’s items such as war medals, art
pieces and other memorabilia. His sister was not able to
take on the administration of his complex estate as well as
the tasks associated with sorting through his belongings.
She was relieved to be able to transfer this responsibility
to State Trustees, knowing it would be handled professionally and with the wishes of the deceased in mind.

n

complexity of the estate

n

the named executor lacks the skills and knowledge

n

the named executor has other time commitments

n

there is potential for family conflict that the named
executor wishes to avoid

State Trustees has been invited to attend training sessions
at local Police stations and at the Police Academy to explain
our role and how our services can assist Police and the
families they interact with in their work.
Referrals to State Trustees from Victoria Police have
doubled in the last two years. We will continue to devote
resources to this valuable and respected relationship.

ESSENTIAL PRODUCTS, EXCEPTIONAL SERVICES
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Focusing
on service
Services for the hearing impaired
Using the telephone is something many of us take for
granted. But for many Victorians simple things like calling
a friend, booking a taxi or organising a tradesperson are
made difficult because of speech or hearing impairment.
To connect with people who are unable to use a phone,
State Trustees partners with the National Relay Service.
Using a telephone typewriter (TTY) or internet connected
PC or smart phone, the caller types what they would like
to say.
These messages are then read by a relay officer who
‘relays’ the message to our customer service employees.
It may be a call to obtain information about one of our
products or services or simply to make an appointment for
a Will or the end of year tax return. Or it may be an older
person in need of our support and assistance regarding
the administration of an estate.
Regardless of the nature of the call, our customer service
employees are trained to respond appropriately and these
three-way conversations enable clients with speech or
hearing impairment to communicate with us without any
concerns about misunderstanding or errors.
It’s just another way that State Trustees adapts the way
we do business to meet the needs of all of our clients.

Gathering
client feedback
Each year State Trustees gathers client feedback
across our retail services via the Client Value Index
(CVI) survey.
The CVI is based on a composite score out of 100
which measures client preference for State Trustees
over competitors, willingness to buy more of our
services, and recommend State Trustees to others.
In 2011, we spoke to 1032 clients about their
experience with State Trustees, and our performance
against expectations. The results feedback indicates
that the client experience continues to be strong,
with a CVI score of 70% (an increase from 68% in
2009/10).
n

Eight in ten clients said they would not hesitate
in recommending State Trustees to others

n

Over 90% of clients agree that State Trustees
staff are friendly and professional, honest,
technically capable and offer clear explanations
to clients

I found the service provided
friendly and helpful. I believe it
has taken the pressure off a
very sensitive situation.
Client, Executor Services

The advisors that I had at State
Trustees were very helpful and
knew what they were talking about.
They even offered to make a visit
to my home so that I did not
have to travel into the city.
Client, Wills
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Protecting assets with
Enduring Powers of Attorney
In 2010/11 State Trustees prepared a total of 1,701
Enduring Powers of Attorney (EPA), 742 being financial
EPAs. We acted as attorney for a total of 700 clients over
the course of the year.

Case study:
Caulfield Hospital

With an ageing population, increasing prevalence of
dementia and a growing problem of financial elder abuse
in our community, more than ever Enduring Powers of
Attorney (Financial) are becoming one of the key solutions
that State Trustees can offer as a means of protecting
one’s assets.

State Trustees’ Business Alliance Manager, Vicky, is
a regular and welcomed visitor at Caulfield Hospital.
The team of social workers have come to rely on her as
an important source of assistance for older patients in
particular, who become ill and are assessed as needing
ongoing support once they are well enough to return
home.

An EPA involves a person voluntarily assigning authority
of their legal and financial affairs to another person or
organisation. Often an EPA is prepared when a client
makes their Will but it remains dormant until some time
in the future when it is activated because the client feels
they can no longer manage their affairs or no longer have
the capacity to do so. Alternatively, some clients have an
EPA prepared and activated immediately.
With State Trustees acting as Attorney, clients can
have peace of mind that their finances are being managed
by professionals – whether the purpose for appointing
us is to allow them to look after their health, spend more
time with family or friends, or to protect their assets from
someone who is trying to take advantage of them.
Our State Trustees team has established strong working
relationships with hospital social workers, community case
managers, nursing homes and other organisations so we
can assist when a need is identified.

Social workers often identify that, along with a
continuing need for rehabilitation, therapy or medical
care, there are many patients who require assistance
with management of their everyday bills and financial
affairs. Vicky now attends Caulfield Hospital each
month for appointments with those patients who
request her assistance and to provide information
and answer questions. For many, an EPA is a welcome
solution which immediately relieves their worry and
ensures their affairs remain in order. For some clients,
whose assessment reveals that they no longer have
capacity to manage their own affairs, a VCAT hearing
is held onsite to appoint an administrator.
Vicky says she has a good relationship with social
workers and other medical staff at Caulfield Hospital
as they share a common goal of looking after the
patients and helping them get back on their feet as
best they can.

It’s great having Vicky attend
Caulfield Hospital on a regular
basis. She helps and supports the
social work team in a range of
ways – her work here is fabulous.
She provides answers to clients
and solutions for the team. It
really makes a difference to
us particularly in times of
high demand.
Sally Costar, Manager,
Patient and Family Services, Caulfield Hospital

ESSENTIAL PRODUCTS, EXCEPTIONAL SERVICES
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Helping raise awareness
of financial elder abuse
In our work at State Trustees, we often find ourselves in the position of investigating and addressing instances of financial
abuse of an older person or a person with a disability. Tragically this is often in circumstances where the victim has been
abused by someone close to them, in whom they have placed their trust. State Trustees is often asked to step in when it’s
too late and the opportunity to recover lost or stolen assets is gone. If we had been alerted to the risks earlier, we may have
been able to protect the person’s assets through an Enduring Power of Attorney (EPA) (Financial) or a Trust, or through our
appointment as administrator by the Victorian Civil Administrative Tribunal (VCAT).

Research

Community Education

This year we continued to take a leading role in raising
awareness about the problem of financial elder abuse
through research we commissioned Monash University
to undertake. The research project is titled: Protecting
elders assets study: ethical management of older
persons’ financial assets (PEAS, 2009-2011).

This year we also continued an extensive program of
community education, presenting the research results
and prevention strategies to a range of organisations and
professionals such as solicitors, medical practitioners,
case managers and social workers.

Following the findings in 2010 that the majority of victims
of financial elder abuse are women, and the most likely
perpetrators are their sons, three more reports have been
published during the 2010/11 financial year:
Report 3: Staying safe with money: the experience of
older English speaking Victorians (November 2010),
reveals that Victorians most commonly trust their children
to manage their finances in old age, despite past findings
identifying sons and daughters as the most likely
offenders of financial elder abuse.
Report 4: Diversity and financial elder abuse in Victoria
(February 2011) explores similar issues to report three, but
with older urban non-English-speaking Victorians (Greek,
Italian and Vietnamese) and older rural English-speaking
Victorians.
This study reveals that non-English-speaking Australians
are at higher risk of financial elder abuse due to their
dependency on others for translation, transactions and
services relating to the management of their finances.
Report 5: For love or money: intergenerational
management of older Victorians’ assets (June 2011)
explores financial elder abuse through the eyes of 15
professionals in the health, legal, financial, community and
aged care sectors who work closely with older people and
their families. It identifies how employees within these
sectors can recognise and respond to financial elder abuse.

At one particular seminar, State Trustees’ Steve Cowell
asked 190 aged care staff whether or not they had
encountered elder abuse in their job – 75 per cent of
the audience raised their hand. This validates the
importance of our work with these organisations to
develop prevention and intervention strategies, and to
make professionals aware that Enduring Powers of
Attorney, Trusts, and VCAT Orders are some of the legal
options available to help protect their clients or patients.

Spreading the word through
the media
At State Trustees, we have been delighted with the
extensive media coverage that the research findings have
attracted over the course of this year. Major metropolitan
media including several articles in The Australian, The Age,
Herald Sun, and a radio interview on ABC 774 all featured,
as well as an opinion piece in The Age on financial elder
abuse by our Managing Director, Tony Fitzgerald.
This coverage contributes strongly to building community
awareness of the problem. The more educated the community is about the incidence of financial elder abuse, the
greater the chance of its prevention.

* All five reports can be downloaded in full from our website
www.statetrustees.com.au

It’s been invaluable working with State Trustees on our training days for different
industry sectors about elder abuse. Regardless of their speciality, each sector needs
information on financial elder abuse, and State Trustees’ insights into how it
can occur and what can be done to prevent it have been extremely valuable
Sue Marshall, Business Manager, Sir Zelman Cowen Centre, Faculty of Business and Law, Victoria University
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Contributing
to the review
of Guardianship
Laws
For over 70 years, State Trustees has played a central role in
looking after the affairs of Victorians who need assistance
with financial and legal matters, through, for example, powers
of attorney and VCAT administration orders. In recognition
of this, State Trustees has been an active contributor to the
Victorian Law Reform Commission (VLRC) review of guardianship laws (including laws relating to powers of attorney)
since the review commenced in 2009.
The VLRC’s review is aimed at improving the laws to:
n

ensure they better reflect current human rights
principles and obligations, such as those in the Victorian
Charter of Human Rights and Responsibilities

n

meet the community’s needs and expectations, now
and into the future

n

bring the laws “up to date” (the Guardianship &
Administration Act 1986 has not been substantially
revised in the last 25 years)

Some of the key areas of reform supported by State Trustees
are:

The financial elder abuse
research commissioned
by State Trustees is very
important – perhaps the
most significant work
anyone is currently
doing in Victoria
Dr Gerry Naughtin,
Co-Convener, Australian
Network for the
Prevention of Elder Abuse

n

The development of a single, clear piece of legislation
to remove confusion surrounding options available when
a person has diminished decision-making capacity in
relation to their affairs, or is planning for that eventuality

n

Improved community education to provide guidance
about options, powers and duties of those affected by
the law, including those acting for people with a disability

n

Improved accountability and monitoring of those
appointed to make decisions for others

The wide-ranging review has so far put forward some
innovative ideas, such as the creation of a central, online
registry of all enduring power documents and appointments
made under the Act, which would mean that such legal
appointments can be more readily verified, and that the
conduct of persons authorised to act on another’s behalf
are more open to scrutiny.
State Trustees welcomes changes that will minimise the risk
of financial abuse and contribute to the protection of those
with compromised ability to manage their own affairs, whilst
respecting as far as possible the capacity of individuals to
make their own decisions and maintain their independence.
The VLRC is due to deliver its final report to the Government
by 23 December 2011.

ESSENTIAL PRODUCTS, EXCEPTIONAL SERVICES
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Trusts – solutions for
the challenges of today
Financial elder abuse
With a growing need to protect assets from the
risks of financial elder abuse, Trusts can provide a
good solution. For example, clients can place their
assets in a Trust and nominate themselves as the
primary beneficiary. As Trustee, we prepare a financial
plan for our client and set up regular payments to
their bank account from the income earned on their
investment. With the investments managed by an
expert third party, the client can avoid being subjected
to frequent requests for money, or being pressured
into giving others access to their assets. Similarly, this
is a good option for someone who is unwell or just
needs a dependable third party to manage their
finances.

Changing family structures
As society is changing, family structures are no longer
stereotypical and the relationships between family
members are becoming more complex than ever.
Trusts serve as a potential solution for these changing
circumstances as well. We expect to see growth in
demand for Trusts over coming years as their uses
extend beyond the traditional.
For example, often with second marriages, a person
may want to allow their new partner to continue living
in the home after they have passed away, and for it
ultimately to be inherited by children from the first
marriage. A property may be placed in trust to allow
for these wishes to be met.
Similarly, grandparents concerned about the fate of
an adult son or daughter’s marriage may place assets
in trust for grandchildren to protect against these
assets being inadvertently mis-handled by a former
son- or daughter-in-law on behalf of their grandchildren.
Another example is divorcing parents who wish to
contribute to the education costs of their children. By
placing funds in a Trust managed by an independent
trustee company such as State Trustees, parents can
have peace of mind that these funds will be used
solely for educational purposes.
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Disabled children

Superannuation Trusts

Trusts also meet a very important need for parents of
disabled children. As they age, an increasing concern
for parents of disabled children is what will happen to
their children when they are no longer able to care for
them. Protective Trusts can be established which will
fund the day-to-day needs of these children. Also,
Special Disability Trusts can be established to provide
for the future care and accommodation of their child.
The establishment of Trusts – either while the parents
are still alive or established by way of a Will once the
parents pass away – can provide peace of mind to
parents in this situation.

Another area where State Trustees is experiencing
growth in Trusts is in our appointment as Trustee for
a child who has received superannuation benefits
upon the death of a family member. Superannuation
Trustees are recognizing that in more and more cases,
there are benefits to having a professional, impartial
Trustee managing funds for the future welfare of
minors.

Case Study: Waverley
Industries ‘Day of Champions’
Located in the South Eastern Region of Melbourne,
Waverley Industries, a ‘not for profit’ Australian
Disability Enterprise, is one of the leading employers
of people with disabilities in Victoria. Providing
employment and accredited training to over 250
people with disabilities, Waverley Industries provides
meaningful and challenging employment opportunities for people with disabilities, providing customer
solutions and services in hospitality and catering,
packaging, assembly and manufacturing industries.

Where the beneficiary is a child and the deceased was
a parent, the job of managing complex financial affairs
is a burden that the remaining parent may not be able
to manage during an emotionally difficult time. For
some, decisions regarding the best way to manage a
large amount of money or ensuring the available funds
will last as long as they are needed can be challenging
and complicated. Unfortunately there have also been
instances where funds intended for the minor’s care,
have been misused.
With a professional Trustee company administering
the Trust, a sound investment strategy is developed
for the management of Trust assets, all decisions are
made on an impartial basis, and in-house experts in
taxation, law and financial planning are available to
ensure the best outcome for the beneficiary.

State Trustees was a proud sponsor of the Waverley
Industries ‘Day of Champions’ in early 2011. We contributed $5,000 towards a special day of fun and entertainment to raise money towards the recently redeveloped
commercial kitchen and new function facility.
This sponsorship follows the development of positive
relations between our organisations. State Trustees
was given the opportunity to educate families and
friends of Waverley Industries employees on the
options available to them in protecting and managing
assets of people with disabilities, both now and in
the future. We have provided information on the traps
of poorly written Wills, the benefits of a Trust within
a Will and the broader range of options including
administration services for managing the financial
and legal affairs of people with a disability.
The seminars have been well received, with parents of
disabled employees aware they need to put something
in place, and relieved that sound solutions are available.

ESSENTIAL PRODUCTS, EXCEPTIONAL SERVICES
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MANAGING THE FINANCIAL AFFAIRS OF REPRESENTED PERSONS

State Trustees
– experts in the VCAT Process
Bill and Mary Smith had tried for many years to help
their son David manage his financial affairs, but with
David’s schizophrenia and alcoholism this was no easy
task. Just when things seemed to be going well, David
would spend all his Centrelink entitlements on the
day he received them, leaving him without money
and relying on his parents for financial support for the
rest of the fortnight. While it was becoming more and
more evident that Bill and Mary needed some help
for their son, the process of getting an administrative
order seemed daunting and complicated. Eventually
Mary phoned State Trustees’ Advice Line and
immediately the burden was lifted from her shoulders.
Since 1996, State Trustees has had an office at the
Victorian Civil and Administrative Tribunal (VCAT) at
55 King Street, Melbourne, providing immediate advice
to Tribunal Members as well as to new clients who have
just had us appointed as administrator to manage their
financial and legal affairs.
For 14 years, we have fulfilled this role with one consultant
dedicated to responding to enquiries and providing
information.

n

Assistance in making an application, including advice
on pulling together all the various pieces of information
that may be required as evidence to support the need
for an administration order such as:
Completing application forms
Obtaining medical reports
n Gathering supporting documentation from
accommodation providers or carers
n
n

n

Working with other health care workers and
providing referrals to other organisations

n

Ensuring all interested parties are informed
e.g. family members, case workers

n

Helping ensure that the person in need of an
administrator actually attends the hearing

Seeking an administration order for a family member can
be a very traumatic ordeal for families. Our State Trustees
team (some of whom are pictured below) comprises senior
consultants with the relevant credentials, knowledge and
experience to provide answers on the spot, and perform
their role with empathy and understanding.

Identifying a growing need for assistance to the public
– both in the volume of enquiries and the type of help
needed – we expanded the service offering to Victorians,
with a new Advice Line in August 2010.

The new Advice Line
The Advice Line provides an invaluable service to the
Victorian community. In addition to answering questions,
we assist people in taking the next step.
The service includes:
n

Information about the VCAT application process

n

Advice and support – not just over the phone but also
appointments or visits as needed

The new service has been received well by members of the
public, who often comment that they are relieved there is
a service they can go to for all the information they need,
and are grateful to have someone to listen to their concerns.
The Advice Line is also proving to be a useful resource for
organisations and professionals in the community such as
accommodation facilities, carers and social workers who
are increasingly referring their clients to us for assistance.

I found your assistance invaluable. Also, our client has settled so well
into her new accommodation. This was the best decision – for her,
and for State Trustees to be appointed.
Carol Fraser, Mental Health Clinical Social Worker, Aged Persons Mental Health Program Social Work Unit

MANAGING THE FINANCIAL AFFAIRS OF REPRESENTED
SECTIONNAME
PERSONS
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Clients regaining
financial independence
Nothing is more rewarding for us at State Trustees
than to see one of our clients regaining control of their
own affairs.
That’s why in 2002 we introduced the Financial
Independence Program. This Program gives clients an
opportunity to receive assistance and guidance in
learning to handle their finances. The level of financial
independence that can be returned is carefully assessed
for each individual and allows them to gradually become
involved in the management of their own budget.

Case study:
Congratulations Deborah!

Clients can move at a pace that suits them best,
to achieve the ultimate goal of gaining full financial
independence and having their administration order
reviewed.
Of all the services we provide, this program generates
the most interest from clients and their carers.
Since the program started in 2002 a total of 2,200
clients have participated, with its popularity growing
each year.
Approximately 10% of the participants regain full
control of their financial and legal affairs. Many more
enjoy regaining partial independence, knowing that
State Trustees is there to provide protection and
peace of mind.
300
250

250

280

300

200

0

08/09 09/10

Participants

50

Participants

100

Participants

150

10/11

Since the program
started in 2002 a total
of 2,200 clients have
participated, with its
popularity growing
each year.
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A single mother of two sons, Deborah decided in
2008 that after many years of having State Trustees
administer her affairs, it was time to try and take
control of her life. With the careful supervision of her
consultant, she joined the Financial Independence
Program and now she’s managing her own affairs
after 19 years.
Living in country Victoria, Deborah works a few hours
each week as a cleaner. Little by little she started
to manage her own expenses. First it was just the
chemist bills, then water and phone bills, groceries
and electricity. It came with its fair share of trials and
at one stage Deborah relapsed and again needed
State Trustees’ full support. However she bounced
back even more determined to succeed. Soon Deborah
was managing her own wages and over a two year
timeframe, showed enormous strength and focus by
saving over $3,000 to purchase a car.
Deborah’s consultant, Ian, helped her locate a suitable
car, assisted with roadworthy reports and negotiated
a better price to assist Deborah in the purchase.
With Ian’s recommendation, VCAT decided an
independent administrator was no longer necessary.
Deborah has had her administration order revoked and
has now regained full control of her financial and legal
affairs.
Deborah is doing very well, continuing to save,
and is very pleased with her new-found financial
independence.
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Intensive support
for the most vulnerable
In 2006 State Trustees established a dedicated team of professionals to provide crisis intervention and support
to some of Melbourne’s most vulnerable people. They may be at risk of homelessness, financial or other forms of
exploitation, abuse, physical harm, or isolation from the community.
Many of these clients may have disengaged from support
services, been refused services from other agencies or
banned from banking and health institutions. The Intensive
Needs Team assists them to reconnect with various social
agencies and other services, ensuring they are adequately
housed and have the basic necessities of life.
In 2010/11, the team continued its focus on educating
other community organisations about how State Trustees
can assist their clients. These included:
n Commonground – provides long-term accommodation
and support to Melbourne’s homeless community
n

Police stations within the CBD

n

Royal District Nursing Service

n

Department of Human Services Justice Teams

n

Court Integrated Services Program – located at the
Magistrates Court, this program assists defendants to
get support and services to help reduce incidence of
re-offending

The team also hosted a visit by the acclaimed Williamson
Community Leadership Program as part of the group’s
‘Marginalised Melbourne’ tour. Phil Goulding, a Williamson
alumni and Deputy General Manager of Wintringham,
organised the tour to give course participants insights
into some of the current and emerging issues regarding
services for marginalised Melburnians.

Tour participants thought it was
wonderful that such an essential
service was located right in the heart
of Melbourne’s financial district
Phil Goulding, Williamson alumni and
Deputy General Manager of Wintringham
In August 2009, the Intensive Needs Team was honoured
through The Melbourne Awards, for contribution to the
community by a corporation.

MANAGING THE FINANCIAL AFFAIRS OF REPRESENTED PERSONS

21

How we optimise each
individual’s financial position
When administering the financial affairs of represented persons, it’s not just a case of managing income and paying the
bills. An important aspect of each and every Consultant’s role is to look beyond the obvious and identify extra entitlements
that the client may be eligible for, as well as any costs they should not be incurring.
The expertise and experience of our Consultants and
the processes we’ve established in our business, save
our clients thousands of dollars each year in costs.
For example:
n

n

Telecommunications debts – some clients,
due to their disability, have difficulty using and
understanding everyday services that other
people take for granted

n

Fines or debts from Citilink, their credit card
provider, or other utility companies

n

Late tax penalty fees or tax debts
For example...
Our client Alex, as a result of her mental illness,
built up a telephone bill of $1,200 which she was
unable to pay. Her consultant persisted in defending her interests, eventually referring the matter
to the Telecommunications Ombudsman. The
consultant was successful in having the full debt
waived and a restricted phone service was
connected to protect Alex from future costs.

n

We also obtain additional entitlements for our clients
that they may not have otherwise been aware of,
such as:

Misappropriation of funds
For example...

Foreign pensions – many clients are unaware that if
they lived and worked in another country they may
be entitled to a pension from that country
For example...
One of our clients was delighted when we sourced
a $57,000 back payment through the UK pension
authority.

n

Victims of crime claims

n

Superannuation – we have a dedicated team that
investigates clients’ eligibility for superannuation or
disability insurance payments, and pursues these on
behalf of clients who are often not aware they have
such assets or entitlements
For example...
Our client, Marie, suffering from Multiple
Sclerosis, had a superannuation account with
disability benefit cover. We were able to gain an
entitlement for her of over $18,000 per year
plus $54,000 in back payments.

Our Aged Care Team received thanks from a
Nursing Home when we assisted in pursuing
an order against a client’s relative. He had been
living in the client’s home and failing to pay rent
that was needed to pay nursing home fees.
n

Assistance in negotiating the price of
high-cost items such as a new car

n

Accommodation costs
For example...
Our Aged Care Acceptance team negotiated a
nursing home bond for a client and her husband.
This resulted in saving the couple in excess of
$100,000.
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In 2010/11 we successfully
recovered a total of almost
$450,000 in misappropriated
funds for our clients
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Working in the community to
improve services for all our clients
In 2010/11 State Trustees continued to work with
other organisations that provide services to our clients
or people who share similar circumstances or disabilities.
This enables our consultants to learn about other
community services and programs that can benefit
our clients, thereby helping them to provide a better
service. Some examples include:
n

PILCH – the Public Interest Law Clearing House (Vic)
Inc. – an independent, not-for-profit organisation
which facilitates pro bono legal services to Victorian
individuals and organisations in need.

n

Participation on Expert Panels such as the
Cultural and Linguistic Diversity Elder Abuse Forum.

n

CBD Homelessness Network.

n

Youth Projects, The Living Room – a primary
healthcare service which provides comprehensive
care to people who are homeless with complex
healthcare needs.

n

Being involved in these activities and programs also assists
our employees to educate other organisations or act as an
advocate on issues that affect our clients. For example:
n

Kildonan UnitingCare – State Trustees is working
in partnership with this not-for-profit organisation to
address the challenges that utilities expenses place
on vulnerable members of our community, including
participation in hardship programs with the energy
service providers.

n

Department of Transport – a DVD was produced and
shown to employees of the Department of Transport
addressing the issue of social inclusion. Our team
shed light on the challenges faced by Victoria’s most
vulnerable residents and how the public transport
system plays a pivotal and vital role in their lives.

n

Professional seminars – our team continued an
extensive community education program, some of
which were in conjunction with OPA (Office of the
Public Advocate) and VCAT (Victorian Civil and
Administrative Tribunal), to advise health professionals
and community workers of the services that are
available to people who are not fully able to make
legal and financial decisions for themselves.

n

RMIT Disability Studies students – a presentation
to third-year students was followed by an hour of
enthusiastic questions. A number of students have
subsequently sought student placement opportunities
with State Trustees as part of their third-year studies.

n

Disability Advisory Forum – in April 2011,
State Trustees hosted the inaugural meeting of the
Disability Advisory Forum. Members include: ARBIAS,
Wintringham (services for elderly homeless people),
Yooralla (services for Victorians with a disability) and
the Mental Illness Foundation. The purpose of the
Forum is to find ways for members to work together,
through advocacy and other co-operative steps, for
the benefit of our mutual clients on challenges and
opportunities that may have an impact on their
financial and/or legal situation.

ARBIAS

Over the past 7 years or so,
we’ve noticed a really positive
shift in State Trustees’ approach
to our clients. How you make
decisions about their funds and
budgets seems to reflect a more
experiential understanding
of our clients and their
complex behaviors.
John Eyre, CEO, ARBIAS.

Thank you for participating in the making of the social inclusion and public
transport DVD. The personal stories and experiences shared in the DVD
resonated strongly with viewers, and helped reinforce the important
contribution public transport makes to a socially inclusive society.
Alison Smith, Director Social Transit Unit, Department of Transport
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Decision making
At State Trustees, when making decisions for a represented
person, we recognise that we have a duty to act in the
client’s best interests. We endeavour to take into account
as far as possible the wishes of the represented person
and to respect their desire for freedom of decision.
The nature of the disabilities or illnesses that many State
Trustees clients have can make them vulnerable to strangers
and, in some cases, even family and friends. Some clients
are also susceptible to their own weaknesses, particularly
in the case of substance abuse.
When our clients make a request to access their funds,
the starting position of our Consultants is always ‘yes’.
We start the decision making process with the intention of
granting their request, and working from there, to consider
several issues and assess whether the request is in their
best interests. For example:
n

Whether the client can afford the request

n

The client’s circumstances (e.g. for an older client
a larger sum of money may be appropriate to be
granted relative to a younger person whose funds
need to accumulate an income stream for many
years to come)

n

Whether there appears to be any coercion from
outside parties

n

What the client is likely to use the funds for

A client may not recognise that the decision being
made is in their best interests and this can be the cause
of complaints received by State Trustees, or complaints
about State Trustees directed to the Ombudsman Victoria,
a local Member of Parliament and even the media.
Despite arriving at a decision through a thorough
assessment of the request and the client’s circumstances,
it is inevitable that clients will sometimes be disappointed
when a request is denied. We ensure that our clients have
access to information that helps them understand how
to have their concerns reviewed.

Concerns Management

Anthony is responsible for ensuring that all customer
concerns are investigated in an independent and timely
manner. He will promptly access the client’s records, talk
to their Consultant, and then consult with the client (and
family members if appropriate) with due regard to their
wishes.
By being in a role separate from the original decision
makers, Anthony is able to view decisions with a different
perspective of what may be in the client’s best interests.
He will often work with State Trustees’ clients and those
closest to them, to not only bring about the best outcome,
but to help clients understand the decision and why it was
made.

Our clients’ circumstances
can be complex…
Case study:
Mark was born into a very wealthy family and suffers
from mental illness. While he has a large sum of money
under administration with State Trustees, he is allocated
a daily cash allowance of just $40. This is because when
given larger amounts, his disability interferes with his
decision making and he typically gives the money away
or spends it to support an addiction.
Mark’s Consultant at State Trustees ensures he has
everything he needs by purchasing items for him. However,
taking into account all his circumstances, it is clearly in
his best interests that his actual cash allowance remains
at $40 per day. As Mark’s circumstances change, the
cash allowance is reviewed.
This is a great cause of frustration to Mark who has
even complained to his local Member of Parliament.
While we understand his frustration and regularly
explain the reasons for our decision to Mark, our duty as
administrator is to ensure Mark has a secure financial
future and does not run out of money.

We encourage our clients in the first instance to express
concerns or complaints to their State Trustees Consultant
or the Consultant’s Team Leader – either by telephone,
email, facsimile, in writing or via a face-to-face
appointment.
If a client still feels that they have not been provided
with a satisfactory response, they can contact our Client
Concerns Manager, Mr Anthony Hughes. State Trustees’
Consultants are also encouraged to contact Anthony
about any client related matters they may need assistance
in resolving.
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Gathering
client feedback
Each year State Trustees gathers client feedback about
our Personal Financial Administration services via the
Client Value Index (CVI) survey.
The CVI score for clients whose financial and legal
affairs we administer under a VCAT order, is a composite
score out of 100 that measures the perception that
State Trustees acts in the best interests of clients, and
willingness to recommend State Trustees to others.
In 2011, we spoke to 431 clients and members of their
support network (such as family members and social
workers) about their experience with State Trustees, and
our performance against expectations. The CVI score
continued to be strong this year at 75%.
n

80% of respondents agree that our Personal
Financial Administration services teams are
friendly and professional

n

85% of clients and their support network believe
that clients’ money is safe with State Trustees

Case study:
Andrew is a represented person who suffers from
bipolar disorder. Several years ago, Andrew started
phoning the Client Concerns Manager weekly,
complaining that he was unhappy with his living
allowance and wanted more money. At the same
time he submitted several complaints to the
Treasurer’s Office and the Attorney-General.
Andrew believed he was capable of managing his
own financial affairs, and with his parents’ support,
and his doctor also providing supporting documentation that he did not need an Administrator, his
administration order was revoked at a VCAT hearing.
Andrew was again in full control of his own finances .
Three months later, Andrew’s mother called State
Trustees, concerned because Andrew was not coping
with managing his budget – in particular, he would
go on spending sprees, losing large amounts of money
on extravagant purchases. His mother asked if State
Trustees could be re-appointed as his Administrator.
When Andrew’s doctor conceded he was not well
enough to manage his own affairs, State Trustees was
re-appointed and his financial situation was stabilised.
Andrews’ parents are very relieved and Andrew
himself is now comfortable with the arrangement.

The best thing about State Trustees is
that they give me peace of mind that
things are being handled properly and
that my uncle’s affairs are managed
properly. It takes the worry
away from me as the carer.
Carer for a Personal Financial
Solutions client

They help people to save money and
there is a caring culture there – I have
a consultant and they help me to
rethink and go over issues
that arise.
Client, Personal Financial Solutions
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SUPPORTING THE COMMUNITY

Charity Ball raises
$87,168 for Alzheimer’s
The State Trustees Charity Ball 2011 was held on Saturday
25 June at Sofitel Melbourne on Collins. The night was a
huge success, with $87,168 raised for charity partner
Alzheimer’s Australia Vic.
Our organisation is strongly committed to raising
community awareness about dementia. While it currently
affects over 69,000 Victorians, the prevalence of dementia
in our community and across Australia is increasing, and
is projected to affect around 1 million Australians by 2050.
We see events such as the Charity Ball as one small way
that we can contribute much-needed funds to support
Victorians affected by dementia, and their carers and
families.
The funds raised at our Charity Ball will help support the
volunteer training program, which will include training
phone operators for the National Dementia Helpline; often
the first point of contact for people newly diagnosed with
dementia, and their families.

Over 450 guests attended the Charity Ball, including
Treasurer, Kim Wells, Minister for Health and Ageing,
David Davis, Professor Colin Masters, Alzheimer’s
Australia Vic CEO, Maree McCabe and Alzheimer’s
Australia National President, Ita Buttrose. Attendees
were treated to an eclectic line-up of comedy, live
music and fine food and wine.

Special Thanks to:
Our Premium Partner
n Response Cleaning

Platinum Sponsors

Abbeys Auctions
n Ern Jensen Funerals
n Maurice Blackburn Lawyers
n

Left to right: Maree McCabe, Chief Executive Officer, Alzheimer’s Australia Vic | Tony Fitzgerald, Managing Director, and
Julie Elliott, Chair, State Trustees Limited | Ita Buttrose, National President, Alzheimer’s Australia

We are thrilled to have exceeded last year’s fundraising total of $68,500. The
success of the evening would not have been possible without the tremendous
support of all our sponsors, suppliers, employees, the organising committee
and guests – a big thank you to all for their generous contributions.
State Trustees’ Managing Director, Tony Fitzgerald.
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connected10 art exhibition
...celebrating diversity and ability
TM

1

State Trustees connected® annual art exhibition and art prize, for new and emerging
Victorian artists with a disability or experience of mental illness, continued in 2010.
Held at Melbourne Central, 215 works were displayed from a total of 456 entries –
testament to the growing success and popularity of this event since it first began in
2003, featuring just 22 artists.
At the opening on Friday 13 August, the Treasurer presented art supplies vouchers
for 1st, 2nd and 3rd prize for the exhibition. 1 Adam Knapper, an artist from Bentleigh
was announced the winner for his work entitled ‘The Soul Against Death and All Terror’.
Second and third prizes were awarded to 2 Carl Harris of Mansfield and 3 Michael
Minniti of Greensborough respectively. At the end of the exhibition, the annual Allan
Merigan ‘People’s Choice’ award was awarded to 4 Sarah Boyadijian for her piece
‘Baker’.

2

An important focus of the connected10 exhibition was to strengthen ties between
people with a disability or an experience of a mental illness and the broader community.
Our vision is to engage as many people as possible in an understanding and celebration
of diversity and ability, while fostering a greater appreciation of the potential of all
people.

Many of the artists have
experienced such hardship as a
result of their disability or mental
illness and it’s truly inspiring to
witness them celebrating their
art in a public forum and sharing
that moment with their
loved ones

3

Tony Fitzgerald,
Managing Director, State Trustees

4
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Melbourne migrants
dance to the tune of $5,000
Migrants with a disability were the beneficiaries of a
$5,000 community grant from State Trustees in May 2011.
The community grant funded OPA! You Can Do I Can Do,
Spectrum Migrant Resource Centre’s weekly dancing
group for adults from culturally and linguistically diverse
(CALD) backgrounds.
Many CALD people with disabilities have limited
connections to mainstream disability support services,
particularly if they have trouble speaking English. OPA!
was created in 2009 to provide an opportunity for
participants to learn new skills, keep healthy and build
ongoing friendships.
General Manager of Aged & Disability Services, Nirmala
Abraham, explains that the broader mission of Spectrum

Migrant Resource Centre is to work with migrants
and refugees to help them successfully settle and to
participate in all aspects of community life through
delivering culturally appropriate services and recreational
activities.
The Spectrum Migrant Resource Centre is one of eight
community organisations across Victoria that received a
grant of up to $5,000 from State Trustees in 2011. The
Community Grants Program supports projects which
help older people, those with physical and intellectual
disabilities or mental illness, or people dealing with
bereavement.
Now in its ninth year, the grants program has helped
close to 100 community groups across Victoria continue
their vital and often unsung work.

Participants of Spectrum Migrant Resource Centre weekly dancing group

Supporting Victorian
Senior of the Year Awards
State Trustees was proud to sponsor the 2010 Victorian
Senior Victorian of the Year Awards, held as part of the
annual Victorian Seniors Festival. An eighty-two-year-old
Shepparton senior, Ted Kitto, was named winner of the
Award for his work with youth organisations.
As a teacher Ted taught at the Shepparton TAFE College,
where he helped many students to obtain trade qualifications and move into employment.
More than 600 guests joined former Governor David
de Kretser and then-Minister for Senior Victorians,

Lisa Neville, at Government House for a special ceremony
to announce the award.
The Victorian Senior of the Year Awards celebrates the
talents and achievements of senior Victorians and the
contribution they make to their local community and to
the state.
The Veteran Community Award was given to ex-army major
John Vincent, for his service to the veteran community,
while Gunditjmara Elder Albert Clarke took out the ‘Go for
your life’ Award for promoting healthy and active living.

SUPPORTING THE COMMUNITY

29

State Trustees: proud sponsors of...
Bendigo International Madison
State Trustees sponsored one of the 17 teams competing
in the Bendigo International Madison cycling event held
over the Labour Day weekend in March 2011.
Since its inception in 1972, the Madison has become a
major annual event for the Bendigo region, attracting
world-class cyclists from Australia and around the globe.

Photos courtesy of Akuna Photography

We were proud to support the Bendigo community and, at
the official launch, the Mayor of Bendigo formally thanked
us for being involved.

Bendigo Budget Briefing
State Trustees had the pleasure of sponsoring the Institute
of Public Administration Australia’s (IPAA) annual budget
briefing in Bendigo in May 2011.
Keynote speaker, Grant Hehir, Secretary of the Victorian
Department of Treasury and Finance, provided local
businesses and community stakeholders with a rundown
of the Budget, specifically how it relates to the local
Bendigo and surrounding areas.
Mike Hurst, Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer,
Bendigo and Adelaide Bank, also provided commentary on
the budget from a local perspective.
The event provided guests with an early opportunity to
learn how the Victorian State Budget will shape government and business economic performance in the coming
year.
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The IPAA State Budget briefings were established in 1997
to provide an early firsthand overview of the State Budget
and implications for the year ahead. Since 2008 IPAA has
been delivering the budget briefing regionally.

IPAA has once again followed
up on its commitment of taking
its program beyond the Melbourne
CBD by hosting this year’s briefing
in the City of Greater Bendigo
Tony Fitzgerald, Managing Director,
State Trustees.

A grant to help pet owners
Bendigo Animal Welfare & Community Services (BAWCS)
was the recipient of a $5,000 Christmas gift from the
State Trustees Australia Foundation (STAF) in 2010.
The grant funded BAWCS’ PetsAssist Program, an initiative
that provides pet care support to assist elderly and
disadvantaged pet owners. Support includes veterinary
assistance, provision of pet care supplies and emergency
pet accommodation and care.
BAWCS President Debbie Edwards explains that pets play
a very important role in vulnerable and socially disconnected
people’s lives.

It’s great to see that Charitable
Trusts are increasingly being accepted
by Australians as a valuable and
effective vehicle for giving
back to the community,”
State Trustees’ Managing Director,
Tony Fitzgerald

Photo courtesy of Bendigo Advertiser

Many people, in particular the elderly, feel isolated and
lonely in the community. A pet can provide companionship,
often the only consistent, affectionate and familiar one in
their lives. Providing proper care for these pets can be out
of reach for a lot of people. As a result this can cause stress,
and in some cases bereavement, should a pet die because
an owner lacks financial means to provide the necessary
care.

BAWCS is one of eighteen Victorian community and notfor-profit organisations that shared in over $154,000 in
charitable grants from STAF in 2010 – a public Charitable
Trust administered by State Trustees that accepts donations
from individuals through living or Will bequests.

State Trustees’ Managing Director Tony Fitzgerald and Bendigo Animal Welfare and
Community Services President Debbie Edwards with dogs Mojo and Cleo.

Staff dig deep for flood victims
State Trustees employees rallied together to support the
victims of the Victorian and Queensland floods in early
2011.
The floods were some of the worst experienced in the
history of the nation, with thousands of people displaced
and a considerable loss of life encountered.

Employees raised over $4,700, which State Trustees
matched dollar for dollar, creating a total fundraising
pool of over $9,400. The funds were evenly distributed
to the Queensland Premier’s Flood Relief Appeal and
the Victorian Flood Relief Appeal.
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Measuring employee engagement
In 2010/11 we continued our annual survey of employees. This year we adopted an employee engagement
style of measurement.
This approach considers the relationship between employee performance and organisational performance,
by measuring the individual’s sense of loyalty and their attachment to the organisation and achievement
of its objectives.
With 80% of employees participating in the survey, highlights included the following results:

88%

My work is very important to me

86%

I am prepared to ‘Go the extra mile’ in my job

81%

I am proud of the work State Trustees does

An overall engagement score of 72% was achieved, which is 2% higher than the national benchmark
across all companies surveyed.
State Trustees scored particularly well against the national benchmark on the following measures:

67%

I enjoy discussing State Trustees
with people outside

55%
71%

I can give equal priority to work
and family/personal life

60%
77%

My leave arrangements offer flexibility

67.5%
75%

My work arrangements are flexible

66%
State Trustees

National

For the first time in my working
life, I have found an organisation that
respects me and wants to develop me
professionally, and recognises
my skills and what I can offer.
I have a young family, my role
at State Trustees gives me flexibility.
I enjoy working in a meaningful role
and continuing my career as well
as working for an organisation
which allows me to have a good
work/life balance.
Quotes from Employee Engagement survey 2011
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Broadening horizons
One of the things employees love about working at State Trustees is the opportunity to get involved in a range of projects,
activities and committees outside of their normal job. They can expand their skills and learn more about our business as
well as pursue their personal interests and develop friendships with people in other areas of the organisation. For example:
n

n

Charity Ball Committee: the Organising
Committee works together to plan and run the State
Trustees Charity Ball each year. The Committee has 4
key sub-committees: n sponsorship/auction n finance
n marketing and communications and n venue.
Employees play a vital role in the preparation for the
event and the ultimate success of the Ball. They find it
extremely rewarding to directly contribute to raising
funds for our Charity Partner.
connectedTM art exhibition: each year employees
have the opportunity to volunteer to work at the
connected art exhibition and gain inspiring insight into
the amazing artworks exhibited by new and emerging
artists with a disability or experience of mental illness.
Our consultants also play an enthusiastic role in
encouraging their artistic clients to participate.

n

Social Club Committee: members can attend
special previews, learn event management skills and
organise creative and fun events for other employees
to share – from family excursions and easter egg hunts,
to special theatre and exhibition discounts, charity
events and comedy shows.

n

Corporate Responsibility Working Group:
as a community service provider, social responsibility
is part and parcel of everything we do. Our Corporate
Responsibility Working Group monitors our community
activities to ensure they closely align with our business
strategies.

n

Community Grants Review Committee:
this team gives up their own time and shows great
dedication to the process of recommending successful
grant recipients. They treat the selection with great
importance to ensure the best organisations are
recommended from the numerous worthy programs
and causes.

...a fantastic reminder of all the
incredible organisations and people
doing so much to help others in the
community. The hardest part was
choosing between so many
worthy grant applications.
Drew, Community
Grants Review Committee

It is great to be involved. Not only
for the opportunity to work with
colleagues from across the business,
but also to gain a better insight into
the range of services that are in the
wider community. The knowledge
gained has really assisted
me in my role.
Maureen, Community
Grants Review Committee

Leah Wong, daughter of employee Yen, proudly holds
up her catch at the Social Club fishing trip.

34

OUR PEOPLE

Great benefits for employees
The State Trustees Limited Enterprise Agreement 2010 was renegotiated
with the Community and Public Sector Union during 2010.
This 3-year agreement governs the employment conditions of employees
through to 31 July 2013.
As just one example of the great benefits renegotiated under this
Agreement, State Trustees will continue to offer to eligible employees
very generous leave provisions including:
n

The option to purchase up to
an additional 8 weeks’ leave
per annum

n

12 weeks’ paid maternity
leave, which will increase to
14 weeks by 2012

n

The option to receive 80% of
salary for 4 years and take the
5th year off with 80% pay

n

2 weeks’ paid paternity leave

n

13 weeks’ long service leave
for 10 years of continuous
service, which may be accessed
pro-rata from 7 years

n

Up to 5 days’ study leave per
annum and half-day leave
per exam

n

The ability to accrue 15 days’
personal leave per annum
cumulative, all of which can be
utilised for sick or carer’s leave
if any employee or a family
member suffers serious illness

Customer Service Team Leader
Amanda is one employee grateful
to be taking advantage of the
purchased leave program.
I am responsible for an elderly relative
and never have Saturdays free as I am busy
helping her. This means I am effectively
working 6 days per week. Purchased leave
means I can take a day off here or there
throughout the year. These days give me a
short break which I feel I need and which I
am sure have prevented me from getting
sick. With the additional purchased leave it
also means I’m still able to take a decent
break and have a real holiday each year.
The option of purchased leave and the
other benefits at State Trustees
differentiate my role from
other jobs in customer service.

An Employee Snapshot
At State Trustees, our workplace culture, as well as
our policies and procedures, actively promote equality
and fairness. Our workforce comprises a mix of cultures
and ethnicities, as well as employees living with a range of
disabilities. Our recruitment processes openly encourage
people with diverse backgrounds to seek employment
with State Trustees, and we look within our organisation
first when seeking to fill vacant positions.

Women are strongly represented in all areas of
State Trustees, including at senior management levels.
With attractive benefits available for working parents,
part-time work and maternity leave, State Trustees
maintains a workplace profile in which many employees
avail themselves of flexible work arrangements to align
with their particular personal circumstances.
The following table provides a profile of our
employees and changes over the past three years:

2010/11

2009/10

2008/09

Total number of employees

593

560

576

New employees to State Trustees

107

78

119

37.6%

45%

32.3%

% of part-time employees

16%

17%

15%

% of workforce who took maternity leave

7%

6.7%

6.25%

% employees aged 18-24

7%

6%

9%

% employees aged 25-34

37%

37%

36%

% employees aged 35-44

28%

27%

28%

% employees aged 45-54

18%

19%

18%

% employees aged 55 years and over

10%

11%

9%

% employees by gender

36% male
64% female

35% male
65% female

36% male
64% female

% leadership roles by gender

45% male
55% female

50% male
50% female

48% male
52% female

% of roles filled via internal promotion
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Learning &
Development:
a key focus
We take the goal of developing our people very seriously
and work with our employees to optimise performance
in their roles and help them reach their full potential.
We have a wide range of training options and programs
available for employees including an extensive series of
facilitated courses offered through our Organisational
Learning Calendar. Other key components of our learning
and development program include: on-the-job training;
workshops; coaching and mentoring; and a comprehensive
series of e-learning programs. In addition, an education
assistance program to support employees to attain
formal qualifications is available.
Whilst we are proud of the multitude of learning
resources that are available, we have also identified
an opportunity to improve the way in which they are
organised. We have commenced a major project aimed
at linking learning resources directly to the competencies
needed by employees to perform their roles, and
enabling learning and development resources to be
accessed by an easy-to-use learning portal. Currently
only in its infancy, we look forward to the future
implementation of the project.
In the meantime, to continue our focus on proactively
managing learning and development in our organisation, a Learning Council was established in September
2010 as a key component of establishing a more
structured learning and development framework.
Comprising the State Trustees Organisational Learning
Manager and General Managers across the business,
the Learning Council oversees a disciplined process to
identify and address the learning needs of our people.
An example of our focus on providing learning opportunities to our employees is our suite of leadership and
management development programs. These are designed
to provide rich development opportunities for new and
experienced managers alike.

Case study: Jacqui Shaw,
Team Leader Executor Services

Since commencing with State Trustees in 2000 in
an administrative position, Jacqui quickly moved into
a consultant role in our Personal Financial Solutions
division, dealing directly with clients and assisting with
training of other employees. Following this, she became
a consultant in the Attorneyships team before being
promoted to her current position as a Team Leader in
Executor Services.
As part of the Management Development Program,
Jacqui first completed the Management Fundamentals
Program, which is conducted over an 18-month period
and resulted in a Diploma in Management from Deakin
University. She then embarked on the Senior Management
Development Program conducted over 2 years – this leads
to a Graduate Certificate of Corporate Management
from Deakin University. Jacqui has also taken advantage
of the opportunity to receive coaching from senior
managers at State Trustees, which she has found very
valuable.
Organisational Learning Manager, John Barton, sees
Jacqui’s participation on this program as a strong
contributor to her career progression. In particular,
we supported Jacqui in fulfilling her career aspirations
by facilitating her move across different divisions of
State Trustees to gain relevant experience. This is a
great example of State Trustees providing structured
leadership development as well as support in finding
the right career path to turn knowledge and skills into
action.
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Great accessibility in central Victoria
In July 2010, State Trustees announced it would open a regional office in Bendigo to provide better access to services for
clients living in and around the Bendigo area. The expansion of State Trustees into Bendigo is occurring in two stages,
initially with the opening of a temporary retail suite, followed by the creation of a Bendigo Regional Office in 2012.

Bendigo Retail Suite
A temporary retail suite opened at 74 Pall Mall, Bendigo
in October 2010, making it easier for the local community
to access State Trustees’ range of services – including
Will preparation, Deceased Estate Administration, Trustee
Services and services for represented persons.

More recently Cindy Elsheikh joined the team. A Client
Relations Consultant, Cindy relocated from our Melbourne
office, bringing her many years of experience to provide
services for represented persons in Bendigo and
surrounding areas.

To kick off our presence in Bendigo, the team initially
comprised two locals. Kaitlin Kubat, Legal Estate Solutions
Solicitor, grew up in Heathcote, a small town about 30
minutes’ drive from Bendigo. She has returned to Bendigo
after completing a Bachelor of Law and Arts degree
at Victoria University and says she is pleased to be
reconnecting with a fabulous regional community.

Cindy has also received a lot of positive feedback from
clients and other organisations: “People are extremely
happy knowing they have a local point of contact. VCAT
is especially pleased that I am located here so they have
someone available to attend hearings, provide advice
and to meet with new clients.”

Danielle Kline, Administrative Support Officer, was born
in Bendigo and has lived there all her life. Danielle has been
involved with a number of community and youth based
organisations in the region and was awarded “Young
Citizen of the Year” by the City of Greater Bendigo in 2007.
They were then joined by Luke Bennett. Orginally from
the Swan Hill area, Luke is our Business Alliance Manager.
His key role is to build relationships with local organisations
and educate them about the services provided by State
Trustees.
The team has received a warm welcome to Bendigo.
Clients frequently tell them that it’s great to have State
Trustees in their regional centre helping people in the
community. Clients also comment that they no longer
have to put off updating their Will.
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Bendigo Regional Office
State Trustees’ permanent Bendigo Regional Office will
be at the City of Greater Bendigo’s Edward Street Car Park
Complex. The office is in a great location, bounded by
Edward, King and Queen Streets. It is expected that State
Trustees will move into the new Bendigo office from
around August 2012.
The permanent office will house approximately 100 employees, with a great proportion of the Bendigo roles being
sourced locally. The current retail suite will also move to
this location from the temporary office at Pall Mall.
Employees considering relocation have been provided with
information about Bendigo and surrounding areas. They
have been given the opportunity to learn more through a
“Bendigo Expo” in Melbourne and visits to Bendigo, both
of which were supported by the City of Greater Bendigo.

New Headquarters
at Footscray
Case study:
One employee who will be relocating to
Bendigo and working in the new Regional
Office is Peter Williams, taking on the role of
Client and Contract Services Manager. Peter,
his wife Rosa and their two children, Belinda
and Thomas, are really excited about the move
to Bendigo and have commenced their search
for a new home. Peter and his family have been
looking at schools, areas where they would like
to live, and Peter is pleased that his wife and
children are very much involved in the process
of relocating – right down to his daughter’s
demands for a larger bedroom!
Both Peter and Rosa are originally from country
Victoria and Peter jumped at the chance to
relocate so their children could experience
growing up with country living as he and Rosa
had. Peter believes this is a great opportunity
to make a lifestyle change for the family.
Peter says that State Trustees has been
very proactive in engaging with employees
and working with people who are relocating,
and also those who are not. The process of
one-on-one conversations and planning has
helped to make the decision to relocate easier
with all of the information available and clearly
articulated. The opportunity to “get to know”
Bendigo has also helped in Peter and his
family’s decision making process.
Peter also wanted to be part of the success
of the Bendigo Regional Office, and the wider
plan to move State Trustees closer to its clients.
He believes this is a way that he can personally
challenge himself to make a difference. Peter is
excited to be part of State Trustees’ future and
to deliver services to regional Victoria.

In October 2010, State Trustees announced that we will
relocate to a new Head Office at McNab Avenue, Footscray.
The purpose-built facility, including a retail office, is
expected to be open in early 2014.
The relocation of our head office reflects a recognition that
we have outgrown our accommodation at 168 Exhibition
Street. With a growing workforce resulting from an increasing
demand for our services, new headquarters will allow us to
do business at an optimal level thereby enhancing delivery
of client services.
Footscray was a standout option for State Trustees
because of its wide range of services and remarkable
potential for development. McNab Avenue will be a vibrant
new community, incorporating an array of residential and
commercial development, shared community spaces, cafes
and facilities. Its close proximity to the Melbourne CBD,
Footscray Railway Station and key road transport links will
cause the least amount of disruption to business operations
and help offer easy access for our employees.
The development site itself provides a once in a lifetime
opportunity to move to state-of-the-art facilities. Most
importantly, the move to Footscray represents a major
cornerstone in our strategy to move closer to our clients
and to help ensure we can meet the growing and changing
needs of Victorians in the future.
A large number of State Trustees’ clients live in and around
the Western suburbs and the new office will make it easier
for the local community to access our range of financial and
legal administration services. By being closer to our clients,
we can become a real part of the community and help
people plan for the challenges of the future.

Most importantly, the move to
Footscray represents a major
cornerstone in our strategy to
move closer to our clients and
to help ensure we can meet the
growing and changing needs
of Victorians in the future.
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Recognition of
our achievements
Project Management

Website Design Award

On 28 August 2010, State Trustees was awarded an
Australian Institute of Project Management (Victorian
Chapter) 2010 Achievement Award for outstanding
achievement in project management in the category
of Organisation and Change Management.

The State Trustees website has been shortlisted for the 2011
Qantm Create Design Awards. This is a great feat, as the
total shortlisted national field, including State Trustees, is 17.
Now in its seventh year, the Qantm Create Design Awards
celebrates Australia’s world-class creative industry, awarding
exceptional talent over a vast array of creative fields. The
winner will be announced in September 2011.

This award was accepted on behalf of State Trustees
by Geetha Douglas, Project Manager for the Southern
Service Centre (SSC) project. The project established State
Trustees’ Dandenong office as part of the organisation’s
decentralisation strategy.
This is a great achievement for State Trustees, which was
chosen by the judging panel ahead of nominations that
included some of Australia’s largest companies. The award
not only recognised how well employees embraced a major
organisational change, but also publicised State Trustees’
services and new brand.

The home page of State Trustees’ award-nominated website

Left: Geetha Douglas, SSC Project Manager, accepts the
AIPM award on behalf of State Trustees | Right: John Brennan
(left), State Trustees’ General Manager, Strategy and Network
Development, and Geetha proudly display the award

Public Advocate’s Award
The Office of the Public Advocate’s annual Volunteer
Conference was held on Friday, 15 October 2010. The
inaugural Public Advocate’s Award was presented to Kath
Ensor for her voluntary work with residents of a Supported
Residential Service, helping them to recall and share
aspects of their life stories.
Kath is a public historian who is able to combine her passion
for discovering family history with her work as a probate
genealogist at State Trustees.
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Employing
Business Process
Management to
enhance customer
service
The adoption of Business Process Management
methodologies has been a key focus of 2010/11 with
a structured program of work delivered to identify
opportunities for continuous process improvements.
Through detailed analysis of existing procedures
in a selection of operational and client-facing areas of
the organisation, we have identified ways to improve
efficiency and effectiveness through reduced incidence
of errors, faster payments for our clients and better
use of existing resources.
We look forward to continuing this program of
work and implementing process changes which will
ultimately assist us to enhance our service delivery
and better meet the needs of our clients.

Reducing our carbon footprint
At State Trustees we’re always looking for new ways to address
environmental issues and reduce our carbon footprint. Most recently, we’ve
introduced ‘swipe’ functionality to all existing multifunction and colour
printers, as a green cost-saving initiative.
After using swipe printing functionality in selected areas of Head Office as
well as at our Bendigo and Dandenong offices with very positive feedback,
it has now been introduced across the company. Benefits include:
n

improved & more efficient printing of employees’ print jobs

n

increased security of sensitive documents – swipe keeps printouts for
the intended person only

n

most importantly, a significant reduction in paper wastage through:
the ability to cancel print jobs that are no longer required
print jobs only printing when employees swipe their security cards; and
n printouts that are not required being automatically cancelled overnight
n
n

Another green
initiative at
State Trustees
If employees forget to shut down
their PC when they leave for the
day, their PCs will automatically
turn off or go into ‘deep sleep’
mode.
This initiative contributes
significantly to power savings.

By eliminating uncollected printing,
we save thousands of pages per day.

Improving our records
management capability
In 2010/11 State Trustees
continued a major initiative
to introduce a formal records
management program. Improving
the way records of our business
transactions and key decisions
are created, stored and managed,
will facilitate greater efficiency in
records-related activities; ensure
compliance with Public Records
Office Victoria’s requirements;
as well as assist to reduce space
and costs associated with storage
of physical files.

While this is a three-phase project which is expected to be completed by
2013, significant progress was made during this financial year, including:
n

A formal tender process and selection of a suitable Electronic
Document and Records Management System (EDRMS)

n

Design and testing of the EDRMS

n

Appointment of a team of records management representatives
across State Trustees to facilitate smooth transition for the
organisation to the new system and practices

n

Commencement of training in policies and principles of records management

Early in the 2011/12 financial year, implementation of the EDRMS will commence
in two business areas, followed by phased implementation across the remainder
of the business. The evaluation of an electronic document imaging solution for
State Trustees, to further optimise efficiencies associated with easier assess to
records and a reduction in paper usage and storage, will also be progressed.
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This financial statement covers both State
Trustees Limited as an individual entity and
the consolidated entity consisting of State
Trustees Limited and STL Financial Services
Limited.
State Trustees Limited is a State-owned
enterprise. Its registered office and principal
place of business is:
State Trustees Limited,
168 Exhibition Street,
Melbourne Vic 3000.
A description of the nature of the consolidated
entity’s operations and its principal activities is
included in the Directors’ Report on pages
44-47, which is not part of this financial
statement.
The financial statement was authorised for
issue by the directors on 24 August 2011.
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Directors’ report
State Trustees Limited’s Board of Directors has the pleasure in presenting the
company and economic entity’s financial statements as at 30 June 2011.

1. Board of Directors >

1

Directors of State Trustees Limited and STL Financial Services Limited in office
during the financial year, and until the date of this report, are

Julie A Elliott

MBA (Exec), BEc, FCA, MAICD, SA Fin

3

Appointed: 5 March 2008 (as Director),
1 December 2008 (as Chairman) [Non-Executive]
Committees: Chair of the State Trustees Limited
Remuneration Committee and Member of the
Investments, Compliance and Audit Committees.
Experience: Julie is a Chartered Accountant and has
a wealth of experience in both Global Corporations
and high-profile public sector boards spanning more
than 20 years. Julie is currently Regional General
Manager for the Westpac Group.
Julie has held a range of senior and professional
positions, including Strategic Consulting for Firstwater,
Global Head of Sales and Service, Payments, National
Australia Bank, General Manager, Strategy, Marketing
and Product Development with MLC Corporate
Solutions and Senior Audit Manager with KPMG.

2

CFA, FCA

Appointed: 1 December 2008 [Non-Executive]

1

2

Julie was on the Board of Metropolitan Fire and
Emergency Services Board from 2001 to 2007 and
President and Chair from 2005 to 2007, she also
chaired the Audit Committee. During her time as
Chair she played a leading role in the recruitment
of a new CEO and driving a cultural change agenda
that transformed the organisation.
Julie is a graduate of Leadership Victoria (formerly
Williamson Community Leadership program).

Paula M Allen

3

Committees: Chair of the State Trustees Limited
Investment Committee and Member of the
Compliance Committee.
Experience: Paula has held a range of leadership
positions, predominantly in industry super and
funds management. She was previously CEO of LUCRF
Super, which under her leadership entered the BRW
Top 500 Private Companies and became one of
Australia’s fastest growing businesses. This was further
recognised in industry awards, including the ‘Rising
Star’ award for the industry. Paula helped establish a
funds management business at Salta Properties in her
role as Operations Manager, and later enhanced the
development of the Bellwether Group, initially as
Chairman and later as CEO. Other positions Paula has
held include Australian based roles (including strategic
and operational roles at Colonial Investments and
Bankers Trust), as well as overseas based roles
(predominantly in China and New York).

4

Joshua (Josh) Bornstein
BA, LLB (Hons)

Appointed: 1 July 2010 [Non-Executive]

Anthony G Fitzgerald

Committees: Member of the Compliance and
Remuneration Committees.

BBus, CPA, MAICD

Appointed: 25 September 2003 [Executive]
Committees: Member of State Trustees Limited
Australia Foundation, Compliance, Investment and
Remuneration Committees.
Experience: Over the last 29 years, Anthony Fitzgerald
has gained extensive financial services experience
from a number of senior roles in the National Australia
Bank Group, both in Australia and overseas. These
include Strategy Adviser, Global Business Financial
Services, and Head of Business Marketing, and Business
Financial Services Australia. His experience in the
National Australia Bank Group covered the areas of
strategy, marketing, organisational planning, credit
analysis, sales, and customer and outlet management.
Anthony joined State Trustees in 2002 as General
Manager Estate Planning Solutions looking after
Estate Management, Wills, Attorneyships, and Trusts
and has been Managing Director since September
2003.
Anthony holds a Bachelor of Business Accounting
from the Queensland University of Technology, is a
CPA, and was formerly National President of the
Trustee Companies Association.
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4

Experience: Josh Bornstein is head of Maurice
Blackburn’s Employment & Industrial Law Section.
Josh has managed the Employment & Industrial Law
practise since 1997 including overseeing its expansion
into New South Wales and Queensland. His clients
have included executive employees, an ASX-listed
company, the ACTU and Melbourne City Council.
Josh is a director of Maurice Blackburn Pty Ltd and Per
Capita Limited, and is a member of the Racing Appeals
and Disciplinary Board and the Advisory Board of the
Centre for Employment and Labour Relations Law,
University of Melbourne.
Between 2003-2005, he was Chairman of the
Industrial Relations Committee of the Law Institute
of Victoria. In 2007 he was the Chair of its Workplace
Relations Section and is now an Executive member
of the Section.
Josh is also a member of the editorial committee of
the Australian Journal of Labour Law and a contributor
to the Australian Master Workplace Relations Guide,
now in its 4th edition.

5

7

Annette W Broadfoot
MBA, BBus (Acc)

Appointed: 1 December 2008 [Non-Executive]

5

Committees: Member of the State Trustees Limited
Audit and Investment Committees and Chairman of
the State Trustees Australia Foundation.
Experience: Annette’s work and relationships with
the Victorian Government, various Ministers, Treasury,
Chiefs of Staff, Agencies and Authorities – and her
experience with Transport Accident Commission and
Victorian Work Cover Authority – positions her with the
skills appropriate to the requirements of State Trustees
as a State Owned Company. Additionally, her 20 years
experience in the professional services sector with
the ‘Big 4’ accounting firms embeds a fundamental
commerciality required as a member of the board of
State Trustees. Annette has previously been a Partner
with Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu where she established
and led the National Board Advisory practice into
Financial and Government Services. She has also
worked with PricewaterhouseCoopers global firm
across Australia, London and New York. Annette was
also a Senior Lecturer at Monash University,
(Accounting and Finance).

6

6

7

Bobby has provided consulting services to a variety
of clients both in Australia and internationally, mainly
in the telecommunications and energy sectors. Bobby
has authored and presented papers at a number of
Australian and international conferences on a variety
of topics, including Performance tuning, Database
Design, IT Security, and IT Governance.

In addition, Bobby is involved in various community
organisations and is currently a Board member of Beit
Aharon synagogue and 15th Brighton Scout Group.

8

Appointed: 1 May 2008 [Non-Executive]

Patrick is currently a Director of PFS Nominees Pty
Ltd, MLC Nominees Pty Limited and NULIS Nominees
(Australia) Limited, all corporate trustees of large
public offer superannuation funds administered by
MLC Ltd, a subsidiary of National Australia Bank Ltd.
He is also a Director of The Royal Children’s Hospital
Melbourne and The Skin and Cancer Foundation Inc.

Committees: Member of the Investment and
Remuneration Committees

Bobby also runs his own software based Mind
Modelling consultancy.

BSSc (Hons), FCA, FAICD, SA Fin

Experience: Patrick is a Chartered Accountant with
extensive experience in a range of industries including
the financial services, building and construction,
manufacturing and Government (health, treasury
and finance) sectors.

BSC (Hons), CISA

Appointed: 1 July 2010 [Non-Executive]

Experience: Bobby has over 25 years’ experience in
the IT industry in a variety of specialist roles including
IT auditor, Architect, Analyst, and Performance tuner. He
has helped organisations find smarter, more efficient
ways to manage and get more out of their IT functions
through the effective use of IT Software and process
frameworks.

Patrick M Burroughs

Committees: Chairman of the State Trustees Limited
Audit Committee and Member of the Remuneration
Committee.

Robert David (Bobby) Guttmann

Dr Irene Irvine

PhD Chem, BSc (Hons), DipEd, GradDip
(Admin), FRACI, AICD, AFAIM

Appointed: 1 July 2004 [Non-Executive]

8

Committees: Chair of State Trustees Limited
Compliance Committee and Member of the State
Trustees Audit Committee.
Experience: Irene is an experienced Director and
currently runs her own management consulting
practice. She has held a range of senior positions
in business development, fundraising and strategic
marketing in both the public and private sectors
(including disability services). Irene is a graduate of
Leadership Victoria (formerly Williamson Community
Leadership Program) and devotes much of her time
to not-for-profit or charity activities. She is currently
Deputy Chair of the Zoological Board of Victoria
and Chair of their Remuneration and Governance
Committee and a Director of Australia’s Open Garden
Scheme.
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2. Directors’ meetings
Director

Board
Meeting
A
H

Julie Elliott(a)

11

11

Anthony Fitzgerald

11

11

Paula Allen(d)

11

11

(f)

(f)

10

11

(f)

(f)

Josh Bornstein

Audit
Committee(b)
A
H
4
4

(e)

Compliance
Committee(c)
A
H

4

4

4

(e)

4

Investment
Committee(d)
A
H
4

Remuneration
Committee(a)
A
H

4

2

2

STAF† Advisory
Committee(g)
A
H
(f)

(f)

4

4

4

4

2

2

2

2

4

4

4

4

(f)

(f)

(f)

(f)

4

4

(f)

(f)

2

2

(f)

(f)

(f)

(f)

Annette Broadfoot

10

11

3

4

(f)

4

4

(f)

2

2

Patrick Burroughs(b)

9

11

4

4

(f)

(f)

(f)

(f)

2

2

(f)

(f)

Bobby Guttman

11

11

(f)

(f)

(f)

(f)

4

4

2

2

(f)

(f)

Dr Irene Irvine(c)

9

11

4

4

4

4

(f)

(f)

(f)

(f)

(f)

(f)

(g)

A Number of meetings attended.
H Number of meetings held during
the time the Director held office
exclusive of leave of absence.

(a) Julie Elliott is Chairman of the Board and Chairman of the Remuneration Committee.
(b) Patrick Burroughs is Chairman of the Audit Committee.
(c) Irene Irvine is Chairman of the Compliance Committee.
(d) Paula Allen is Chairman of the Investment Committee.
(e) Tony Fitzgerald attends the Audit Committee meetings by invitation.
(f) Director is not a member of this Committee.
(g) Annette Broadfoot is Chairman of the STAF Advisory Committee.
* In addition, all Directors attended other meetings with Management in the discharge of their duties,
including the two strategy days/sessions.
† STAF stands for State Trustees Australia Foundation, and is attended by three other independent

directors.

3. Principal activities
State Trustees’ principal activities during the year were as trustee, executor,
administrator, attorney and provider of other fiduciary and agency services.

4. Dividend
The shareholder has agreed to a three year dividend holiday commencing
2009-10 remaining in place until the end of the 2011-12 financial year.
This dividend holiday will be used to help facilitate the future funding
requirements of the STL 2020 investment program.

2011
$000

2010
$000

Interim dividend

–

–

Final dividend

–

–

Total dividends for the year

–

–

5. Review of operations
The current reporting period has seen many achievements and challenges.
We have continued on our strategic journey of being more relevant, accessible and valued in the hearts and minds of Victorians, by continuing to map
our existing processes as well as expand the number of locations that our
clients can experience our services. We have completed our first full year in
the Southern Service Centre (Dandenong) and we opened a new site in
regional Victoria (Bendigo).
With regard to some of the challenges that have occurred it should be noted
that the domestic and international equity markets moved in a downward
direction during the final quarter of the financial year and we have incurred
some unexpected costs as a result of landmark legal decisions. This has had
a negative impact on our investment returns and a larger than normal
increase in our corporate expenses.
The profit before tax was $727k (2010: $677k) and whilst this is a 7.39%
increase on last year it is slightly lower ($78k) than budget. The profit after
tax was $573k (2010: $291k) and is slightly ahead ($24k) of budget. This
variance in performance in before and after tax profit can largely be explained
by the imputation credits that we have received on our investment returns,
In addition we have seen a further increase in the valuation of our Land and
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Buildings, which has increased the Asset Revaluation Reserve (Equity) by
$1,093k. The vast majority of this upward valuation was in connection to
the land component of our premises located at 168 Exhibition Street.
We achieved overall revenue growth of 5.55% (2010 5.39%, 2009: 4.65%).
Commissions and fees have seen an increase of 6.79% (2010: 3.45%, 2009:
5.28%) due to larger client volumes in some areas and more complex
services required elsewhere.
The Community Services Agreement (CSA) has inflationary impacts on
our agreed cost base, however a change in the volume and mix of funded
clients result-ed in a decrease in CSA revenue of approximately 2%. The
current agreement continues to be unprofitable and we have now
completed four years of the five year period. A project was established
during the past year to ensure we engage with relevant stakeholders with
regard to making improvements in the terms and conditions of the next
agreement so that we can better service Represented Persons, who form a
core part of the State Trustees business.
We continue to invest in our business, through a launch of new technology
(EDRMS), client servicing facilities (permanent Bendigo site to be established)
and a planned increase in marketing activities. The future will continue to
see change at State Trustees and we have the vision and strategies in place
to continue this evolution.

6. Significant changes in the state of affairs
There were no significant changes in the company’s state of affairs other
than those referred to in the financial statements or attached notes.

7. Matters subsequent to the
end of the financial year
Other than the current market volatility, no circumstance has arisen since
30 June 2011 not otherwise dealt with in this report that has significantly
affected or may significantly affect the operations of the company, the
results of those operations or the state of affairs of the company in
subsequent financial years.

8. Likely developments and future results

11. Auditors’ independence declaration

The directors advise that there are no likely developments in the company’s
operations or expected results in future financial years to report other than
what is reported in this report.

A copy of the auditors’ independence declaration, as required under section
307C of the Corporations Act 2001, is set out on page 74.

9. Insurance
During the financial year, State Trustees Limited paid a premium under a
contract insuring specified officers against liability incurred in their capacity
of working on the company’s behalf. Those officers consist of the Directors
of the Company named earlier in this report, the Company Secretaries, and
other Officers of the Company including certain Officers whose functions
include managing strategic development, providing financial advice and
human resources to the company and its related bodies corporate.
Disclosure of the nature of the liability and the amount of premium is
prohibited by the confidentiality clause of the contract of insurance. The
Company has not provided any insurance for an auditor of the Company or
related body corporate.

12. Rounding amounts
The amounts contained within this report and the financial report have
been rounded to the nearest $1,000 (where rounding is applicable) under
the option available to the company under ASIC CO 98/0100. The
Company is an entity to which the Class Order applies.
This report is signed in accordance with a resolution of the Board of
Directors.

Julie A Elliott Chairman of Directors

10. Reserve fund
State Trustees has complied with the provisions of the Trustee Companies
Act 1984 that requires a reserve fund to be created and set aside by
authorised trustee companies. This is reflected in the financial statements
at Note 8.

Anthony G Fitzgerald Managing Director
Melbourne, 24 August 2011

Auditor-General’s
independence declaration
To the Directors of State Trustees Limited
The Auditor-General’s independence is established by the Constitution Act
1975. The Auditor-General, an independent officer of parliament, is not
subject to direction by any person about the way in which his powers and
responsibilities are to be exercised.
Under the Audit Act 1994, the Auditor-General is the auditor of each public
authority and for the purposes of conducting an audit has access to all
documents and property, and may report to parliament any matters which the
Auditor-General considers appropriate.

Victorian Government
Risk Management
Framework Attestation
In the context of the Victorian Government Risk Management Framework
and State Trustees’ observance of the framework, I, Julie Ann Elliott certify
that State Trustees Limited has risk management processes in place consistent
with the Australian/New Zealand Risk Management Standard (or equivalent
designated standard) and an internal control system is in place that is
intended to enable the executive to understand, manage and satisfactorily
control material risk exposures. The Board verifies this assurance and that the
risk profile of State Trustees Limited has been critically reviewed within the
last 12 months.

vic gov risk man
framewk attest’n

Independence Declaration
As auditor for State Trustees Limited for the year ended 30 June 2011,
I declare that, to the best of my knowledge and belief, there have been:

Julie A Elliott Chairman of Directors

a no contraventions of auditor independence requirements of the
Corporations Act 2001 in relation to the audit
b no contraventions of any applicable code of professional conduct
in relation to the audit.

D.D.R. Pearson Auditor-General
Melbourne 26 August 2011
Level 24, 35 Collins Street, Melbourne Vic. 3000
Telephone 61 3 8601 7000 • Facsimile 61 3 8601 7010
Email comments@audit.vic.gov.au • Website www.audit.vic.gov.au

Auditing in the Public Interest

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

47

Corporate Governance Statement
State Trustees is committed to achieving and demonstrating the highest standards of corporate governance.
Our main governance practices are consistent with the Victorian Government’s ‘Good practice guide on governance
for Victorian public sector entities’. For ease of reporting, we have addressed our governance practices through five
key corporate public sector governance principles. Unless otherwise stated, these practices have been in place for
the full financial year.
This corporate governance statement sets out information about our enabling legislation.

Corporate Structure

State of Victoria
(Shareholder)
Overseen by the Department
of Treasury + Finance

State Trustees Limited
Board of Directors
Managing Director

1. Accountability
1.1 Corporate structure
State Trustees, under its enabling legislation of the State Trustees (State
Owned Company) Act 1994 (Vic), reports to the Government of Victoria, and
comes under the Department of Treasury and Finance. The State of Victoria
is our sole shareholder. We have a Board of Directors, whose members are
appointed by the Victorian Treasurer on behalf of the State of Victoria.

1.2 Communication with shareholder
Through the Board of Directors, State Trustees reports to the Treasurer as
the State of Victoria’s representative. This communication includes:
n quarterly reporting on financial performance, any significant variations
from the Corporate Plan, business risks, and general business issues;
n responding to questions arising from the quarterly reporting either as ad
hoc reports or in direct meetings with the Treasurer or his representatives;
n financial statements, Directors’ reports, and the auditor’s reports as
required by the Corporations Act 2001 (C’wealth);
n any reports requested by the Auditor General or Ombudsman; and
n responses to questions from Members of Parliament.

1.3 Executive reporting lines
Managing Director, Anthony Fitzgerald, leads State Trustees. He has seven
general managers as direct reports. This group, known as the Corporate
Leadership Team (CLT) meets formally each fortnight, but meets informally
more often as required.

1.4 Performance to plan
State Trustees based its financial year operations on its ‘Corporate Strategy
2010–2013’.

Corporate Leadership
Team
Senior Management
Group

We centre our key corporate performance indicators on two components:
client feedback and financial performance.

Client feedback
Each year State Trustees gathers client feedback across our Retail Services
and Personal Financial Administration divisions via the Client Value Index
(CVI) survey. In 2011, we spoke to nearly 1500 clients about their experience
with State Trustees, and our performance against expectations.
Retail Services
At the core of the Retail Services Client Value Index (CVI) survey is a
composite score which measures client preference for State Trustees over
competitors, willingness to buy more of our services, and likelihood of
recommending State Trustees to others.
The 2011 State Trustees Retail Services CVI score was 70% (an increase
of 2% from 2010). Eight in ten clients said they would not hesitate in
recommending State Trustees to others.
Personal Financial Administration Services
The Client Value Index (CVI) score for clients whose financial and legal
affairs we administer under a VCAT order, is again a composite score which
measures the perception that State Trustees acts in the best interests of
clients, and willingness to recommend State Trustees to others. In 2011 the
State Trustees Personal Financial Services CVI score continued to be strong
at 75% (2010: 82%).

Financial performance
State Trustees’ budgeted profit before tax for the financial year was
$805,000. The financial year’s actual performance was $727,000.
We budgeted for a $61.6 million financial year turnover, achieving an
actual financial year turnover of $61.7 million.
At the close of the financial year, our total assets under management
and trusteeship were approximately $1.9 billion.
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1.5 Conflict of interest
Directors must keep the Board advised, on an ongoing basis, of any interests
that might potentially conflict with those of the Company. Directors are
guided in this area by Board-developed procedures on disclosing potential
conflicts of interest.
Where the Board believes a significant conflict exists for a Director on a
Board matter, the Director concerned does not receive the relevant Board
papers and is not present at the meeting while the item is considered.

People – To create and sustain a workplace culture that supports the
Corporate Strategy.
Service excellence – To provide excellent client service that enhances our
client relationships and reputation and supports the growth of our business.

2.3 Governance structure
State Trustees’ governance structure is driven by two pieces of legislation:
the State Trustees (State Owned Enterprise) Act and Corporations Act.
State Trustees is the State of Victoria’s first corporatised public sector entity.
Its creation followed microeconomic reforms at the State and Federal level
in the 1980s, which saw the push towards Government entities becoming
commercialised, corporatised, or privatised.

2. Transparency and openness
2.1 Legislation establishing the entity
State Trustees Limited was established in July 1994 as a result of the
State Trustees (State Owned Company) Act. The State Trust Corporation
of Victoria was its predecessor. The stage was set for State Trustees to
become Victoria’s first State-owned company with the 1992 State Owned
Enterprises Act.
State Trustees was the first company that was wholly-owned by the State
of Victoria, and is a company under the Corporations Act and a trustee
company under the Trustee Companies Act 1984 (Vic).
Although Federal legislation to regulate licensed trustee companies was
enacted in 2009/10, State Trustees is exempt because the State of Victoria
has decided not to request that State Trustees be licensed. State Trustees
remains regulated under Victorian law.

2.2 Goals and strategies
State Trustees is committed to helping Victorians make the most of their
financial opportunities. In particular, we look after the finances and estates
of represented persons. The Victorian Civil and Administrative Tribunal
(VCAT) places these persons under State Trustees’ care via an
administration order.
Under the State Trustees (State Owned Company) Act, the Minister is responsible for ensuring that services relating to managing and administering
estates and property are provided to clients who do not have the resources
to obtain those services. The Minister does this by entering into a contract
with State Trustees, the Community Services Agreement (CSA), to provide
these services.

Although we are a profit-oriented Government Business Enterprise (GBE),
we are also driven by the accountabilities of private sector organisations.
Accordingly, our governance is influenced by both private company and
public entity principles.
For the sake of reporting our governance, we have opted for the public
sector entity approach rather than, for instance, the Australian Stock
Exchange Corporate Governance Principles.

2.4 Competitive neutrality
State Trustees is a public financial enterprise within the meaning of the
Competitive Neutrality Policy Victoria 2000 prepared by the Department of
Treasury and Finance. State Trustees operates under a corporatised model,
and pays the full suite of Commonwealth and State taxes or tax equivalents.

2.5 Remuneration policies
Principles used to determine remuneration
State Trustees bases its executive remuneration packages on the principle
of reward for performance. Our remuneration framework, from the
Government Sector Executive Remuneration Panel (GSERP), aims to align
executive reward with achieving strategic objectives and creating value for
our shareholder.
Our executive officers’ pay and reward framework has two key components:
n Base remuneration is structured as a total employment cost package,
and can be delivered as a mix of cash, superannuation, and prescribed
non financial benefits at the executives’ discretion.
Executives are offered a base pay comprising the fixed component of
pay and rewards, which is no more than 80 per cent of the Managing
Director’s base salary (as determined by GSERP).

The CSA only applies to those who do not have the financial capacity to
pay for such services. The Government pays State Trustees to provide
these unprofitable services conditional on achieving certain performance
standards as stipulated in the CSA.

External remuneration consultants provide advice on whether our executives’ base pay reflects the financial services market for a comparable
role. The Remuneration Committee reviews senior executives’ base pay
annually to compare competitiveness with the financial services market.
There are no guaranteed base pay increases fixed in any senior
executives’ contracts.

In addition, we provide numerous services on a commercial basis to clients
who appoint us to manage their financial and legal affairs. These services
include Estate Planning, Executor Services, Enduring Powers of Attorney,
Will writing, Financial Planning, Tax and Legal Services, and Genealogy.
Since emerging as a State-owned company in 1994, we’ve continually
improved our customer services and accountabilities while striving for
commercial success in the trustee-services industry.
Our three year Corporate Strategy sets out our key result areas and strategic
objectives to be achieved over the 2011 to 2014 period.
The 2011 to 2014 corporate strategy is an evolution of our previous strategy
with each of our key themes combined to form the building blocks for the
future.

n

Short-term incentives are available to each executive depending on the
role’s accountabilities and impact on organisational and business unit
performance. Senior executives can receive a bonus of up to 20 per cent
of total base remuneration, which the Remuneration Committee
approves.

3. Integrity

At the apex of our Corporate Strategy for the next three years is growth.
Our growth strategy is a long-term initiative requiring the whole business
to input into the activities that will drive growth.

3.1 Reporting quality

Engagement with our clients and the community is essential for growth.
We will look to advocate on key issues that impact our clients and the
community and ensure key messages aligned to these issues are
consistently incorporated into all of our corporate communications.

While we have only one shareholder, the State of Victoria, we have numerous
stakeholders who are interested in our ethics and performance.

Five key themes have emerged as our areas of focus for the next three
years:
Growth – To achieve growth in our core and client generation businesses.
Client advocacy and community engagement – To deliver our brand
essence of “Your interests at heart” and maximise our connections to the
Victorian community.
Financial sustainability – To ensure our business fundamentals are sound
by providing efficient and effective services allowing us the capacity to
grow.

Relevant legislation and accounting standards guide State Trustees’
financial reporting.

Key to all our activities is the safety and security of our funds under trust for
both represented persons and the broader public.
We inform stakeholders of our effectiveness in achieving these goals through
our Annual Report, which we produce in hard copy, and make available
online at www.statetrustees.com.au.
Our staff, who are influential stakeholders in providing services to our
clients, are continually updated on our performance. Staff attend quarterly
presentations given by the Managing Director and can follow these up on
the company intranet. We update our clients with a number of specificallytargeted quarterly newsletters that outline our activities.
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3.2 Audit Committee

State Trustees Whistleblowers’ contacts

State Trustees has a formal Audit Committee comprising non-executive
Directors. At its discretion, the Audit Committee invites our internal and
external auditors, the Managing Director, General Manager Corporate
Operations, and Chief Financial Officer to committee meetings. Section 5.2
of this Corporate Governance Report gives further details of this Committee.

State Trustees staff can disclose possible improper conduct or detrimental
action to our protected disclosure co-ordinator, Client Relations Manager,
Anthony Hughes, who is available on (03) 9667 6200. They can also contact
our protected disclosure officers Andrew Schuette, General Manager, People
and Culture on (03) 9667 6882 and John Dennison, Manager, Compliance
and Risk Management on (03) 9667 6459.

3.3 Code of conduct
State Trustees is committed to operating ethically. We have a Code of
Conduct, our public statement of how we conduct our business and treat
clients and staff, and use it to communicate how we expect staff to act
with honesty and integrity at all times.
Our Code of Conduct contains specific clauses relating to confidentiality,
email and information technology, conflict of interest, and personal behaviour. It expressly addresses dealing with breaches and non-compliance
with the Code.

Confidentiality
We expect staff to maintain and respect the confidentiality and privacy
of clients’ personal and financial information. Staff must not use or disclose
any confidential information for any unauthorised purpose, including
for personal use or to benefit a third party. An essential part of all staff
employment arrangements is adherence to our Code of Conduct.
When dealing with represented persons’ affairs, we refer staff to the secrecy obligations set out in section 17 of the State Trustees (State Owned
Company) Act, and remind them that we are subject to other privacy
obligations that may include the Privacy Act 1988 (C’wealth), Information
Privacy Act 2000 (Vic) and Health Records Act 2001 (Vic) depending on the
circumstances.

Conflict of interest
Our Code of Conduct draws attention to conflict of interest. We advocate
acting with honesty and integrity in all aspects of our business. In keeping
with this value, we require staff to take care to avoid actual or apparent conflicts of interest between their private affairs and our business. We define
conflicts of interest as situations where a staff member has a personal
interest that may influence (or even appear to influence) the way they
perform their official duties.
We regularly revise our Code of Conduct. All new employees receive a copy
during their induction training. It is also available on our intranet, and we
require staff to confirm electronically that they have read and understood
it. At that time, we also give staff the opportunity to ask questions in
relation to any aspect of the Code they don’t understand.

3.4 Whistleblowers’ protection
State Trustees is committed to the aims and objectives of the Whistleblowers Protection Act 2001 (Vic). We don’t tolerate our staff at any level
acting improperly at any time, nor do we take reprisals against those who
come forward to disclose improper conduct.
We recognise the value of transparency and accountability in how we do
business.
We support staff disclosing conduct that is corrupt, involves substantial
mismanagement of public resources, or substantial risk to public health and
safety or the environment.
We take all reasonable steps to protect staff who make such disclosures
from any detrimental action relating to that disclosure. We also provide
natural justice to the person who is the subject of the disclosure.

Compliance with the Whistleblowers Protection Act

We will refer all correspondence, phone calls, and emails from internal or
external whistleblowers to the protected disclosure co-ordinator. If a person
contemplating making a disclosure feels uncomfortable doing so on State
Trustees premises, they can request a meeting in a discreet location away
from the workplace.

3.5 Environmental activities
State Trustees is not subject to any significant environmental regulations.
However, we are committed to achieving a high standard of environmentally friendly performance. We have a number of initiatives that aim to
reduce our environmental impact. These include:
n maintaining a paper recycling program;
n using low energy/high light output fittings;
n saving water by implementing dual-flush cisterns;
n undertaking a cartridge recycling program for all printer and photocopier
toners;
n using photocopiers with energy-saving capacities; and
n disposing of light tubes via the EPA waste management system.
The Board is not aware of any breaches of its environmental practices
during the period covered by this report.

4. Stewardship
4.1 State Trustees’ main functions
State Trustees’ main functions, established under the State Trustees (State
Owned Company) Act are to provide:
n trustee services for government and individuals;
n personal administration services;
n specialised legal, financial and tax services including Will making,
establishing Powers of Attorney, Financial Planning, managing
compensation funds, Genealogy Services, and Trust Administration; and
n funds management services and investment products.

4.2 Stewardship activities
Providing personal administration services, specifically to represented
persons, is a core element of our business. In these cases, VCAT’s
Guardianship List has appointed State Trustees as administrator of the
affairs of people who are deemed unable to make reasonable judgements
in respect of their estate.
VCAT’s Guardianship List started in July 1998, replacing the former
Guardianship and Administration Board. The Tribunal and the Office of the
Public Advocate both play a crucial role in determining whether a person
needs an administrator.
Any person may apply to VCAT seeking the appointment of an administrator.
They may nominate a person such as a family member, friend, accountant,
solicitor, State Trustees, or a private trustee company who they consider
could undertake the role. The Public Advocate may also apply to the
Tribunal to appoint a guardian or administrator, or to review appointment
arrangements.

State Trustees encourages staff to report known or suspected incidences of
improper conduct or detrimental actions. We have procedures to protect
from reprisals a person who makes a disclosure and to properly investigate
and deal with any disclosures.

In cases where the applicant doesn’t nominate an administrator, or VCAT
considers the nominee unsuitable, for example, where there is significant
family conflict, VCAT may appoint State Trustees or another suitable
administrator.

Our procedures include disclosure mechanisms, and confidentiality provisions that guide the roles and responsibilities of designated protected
disclosure co-ordinators, protected disclosure officers, investigators, and
welfare managers. We regularly remind staff of the Whistleblowers’
legislation and procedures.

Subject to the Guardianship and Administration Act 1986 (Vic) and the
administration order, an administrator:
n is responsible for managing the represented person’s estate;
n takes possession and care of, recovers, collects, preserves, and
administers the property and estate, and generally manages the
represented person’s financial and legal affairs; and
n exercises all rights relating to the estate that the represented person
might exercise if she/he had legal capacity.

There was a complaint made under the Whistleblowers Protection Act
2001. This complaint was investigated and found to be unsubstantiated.

In exercising such wide powers, the legislation requires administrators to
act in the represented person’s best interests. As administrator, we take
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into account the represented person’s wishes and try to encourage and help
them become capable of administering their own estate.

n

Functions of an administrator

n

Typically, an administrator performs the following functions on behalf of a
represented person:
n prepares and periodically reviews their financial plan and budget;
n manages real estate and other assets;
n collects income including ensuring they receive all of their entitlements;
n manages liabilities and pays accounts as they fall due;
n attends to taxation matters;
n helps them accumulate savings to enable them achieve their aspirations;
n invests available funds; and
n manages legal and associated issues.
State Trustees currently administers over 9,000 represented persons,
managing their assets in excess of $800 million.

Represented persons
Ages and circumstances of represented persons vary significantly. About
39 per cent are older than 60, around 53 per cent are between 31 and 60
years, and the remaining 8 per cent are under 30 years of age. All have
some form of disability such as intellectual impairment, a mental disorder,
brain injury, or dementia that impact on their ability to make reasonable
decisions.
As a State-owned company, State Trustees must perform its functions for
public benefit by:
n operating its business as efficiently as possible consistent with prudent
commercial practice; and
n maximising its contribution to the economy and the State’s well being.
In adopting commercial practice, a company would not normally accept
administrator appointments in circumstances where it would incur a loss.
Losses could occur by undertaking unprofitable activities designed to meet
community and social objectives.

Community Services Agreement

establishing the Financial Independence Program and Intensive
Support Program; and
opened a service centre in Dandenong and a new regional office in
Bendigo to better meet the needs of clients.

We take seriously our stewardship of our clients’ affairs, and of being
responsible for making these economic welfare services available. We
choose our consultants carefully to ensure they are empathetic to clients
needs; we provide these services fairly, sensitively, and confidentially.

4.3 Compliance and risk management
Risk management
The Board oversees State Trustees’ risk management and compliance
framework. We have a management framework for assessing, monitoring,
and managing operational activities, financial reporting, and compliance
risks.
Our risk management framework is structured and transparent. Built
on the Risk Management Standard AS/NZS 31000:2009, it allows us to
identify, assess, and manage risk across the company systematically and
consistently. The framework also defines reporting processes to manage
exposures at an appropriate level across the organisation.
The Managing Director and key senior managers make up the Risk
Committee of Management, which is responsible for supporting the Board
in fulfilling its oversight responsibilities relating to identifying, assessing,
and managing risk, and adhering to internal risk management policies and
procedures. In this role, the committee has delegated authority from the
Board to approve and oversee risk management processes.
External consultants (KPMG) were engaged to review our risk management
policy and framework, plus facilitate the conducting of a corporate risk
review.
Working with the executive and senior management, the compliance and
risk management team helps management mitigate risks by identifying
business risks and controls. The team also monitors and regularly reports
to both the Board and management on the status of risk across the
organisation.

Agreements have been in place between State Trustees and the Minister
responsible for the Department of Human Services since July 1994, and
cover services to a range of State Trustees’ clients.

All staff are trained to understand their compliance responsibilities and
the processes and policies for reporting and rectifying breaches.

We deliver these services under legislation that includes the State Trustees
(State Owned Company) Act, Administration and Probate Act 1958 (Vic),
Trustee Act 1958 (Vic), and Guardianship and Administration Act. In part,
these ensure that members of the public have access to services relating to
managing and administering their estates and property.

State Trustees is committed to meeting strong compliance and ethical
standards. Our Compliance Policy guides us in meeting our ongoing and
continuously changing compliance requirements and obligations.

In 2010/11, State Trustees received income of $15.7 million under the
agreement.

Service improvements
Over the past decade or so, we have implemented numerous improvements
to client services. These include:
n increasing client accessibility by establishing a dedicated customer
service centre in Melbourne’s CBD;
n appointing a client relations team and establishing a coordinated
client contact program throughout Victoria;
n establishing an office at VCAT to provide immediate access to
services for our clients, VCAT applicants, and Tribunal members;
n creating a property facilitator team charged with providing immediate
response to urgent property issues such as securing homes, motor
vehicles, and other valuables including pets;
n enhancing client communication by providing regular service
information to clients and the broader community;
n appointing a client relations officer to deal formally with any complaints
received;
n regularly meeting key stakeholders and advocacy groups to allow
them to raise concerns and give input into service delivery initiatives.
These meetings also provide an opportunity for us to explain our
administration role, responsibilities, and obligations;
n developing new information systems to improve service delivery
efficiency, particularly in managing clients’ financial affairs and file
management;
n developing specialist teams to focus on particular client needs. For
example we have a pensions team to verify entitlements, a quality review
team to assess the quality of work provided for clients, and an intensive
needs team especially for clients with particular needs;

Compliance and control

The policy, which overarches our annual Organisational Compliance Plan,
reflects the Company’s commitment to compliance. We developed this
policy to meet the standards in Australian Standard AS3806 – Compliance
Programs.
To help us more effectively manage our financial services compliance
responsibilities, we have a management committee titled the Australian
Financial Services (AFS) Licence Committee. This committee reviews and
monitors ongoing compliance with AFS licence obligations. Its key
responsibilities include:
n reviewing key risks to compliance with AFS licence obligations,
n resolving AFS licence issues and informing the Managing Director
of risk discussions and outcomes, and
n assessing materiality of compliance breaches and recommending
remedial action according to our Breaches Policy and Procedures.
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Fraud control
State Trustees has a number of management systems, process controls,
and procedures directed at preventing or minimising the risk of fraud.
The Risk Committee of Management oversees and reviews any investigation, then reports its findings and recommendations to the Managing
Director. All instances of fraud must be reported to State Trustees’ Board.
As a result of a fraud that was identified, during the reporting period a
thorough review of relevant procedures was undertaken and controls have
been improved. The financial impact on the Company was not material. A
criminal prosecution is underway.

Business continuity planning
State Trustees has a Business Continuity Plan which is a framework
designed to ensure that critical processes continue if a serious unplanned
event occurs that may disrupt the business.

5. Leadership
5.1 Board of Directors
Board composition
The organisation’s sole shareholder is the State of Victoria. It is represented
by the Treasurer who selects the State Trustees’ Board.
Details of the Board members, their experience, expertise, qualifications,
terms of office, and independent status are set out in the Board of Directors
section of the Directors’ Report.
There are seven non-executive directors and one executive director at the
date of signing the Directors’ Report.
The Board seeks to ensure that:
n at any point in time, its membership represents an appropriate
balance between Directors with experience and knowledge of the
Company, and Directors with an external or fresh perspective; and
n the Board’s size is conducive to effective discussion and efficient
decision-making.

The Board’s guiding principles
The Board operates according to the broad principles set out in its charter,
which details the Board’s role, composition, and responsibilities. These are
additional to the Company’s Constitution. The Company Secretary reviews
the Board of Directors’ Charter at least annually and the Board receives
recommended changes for its approval. The Company Secretary and the
management representative responsible for preparing the relevant
committee’s papers review each committee’s charter at least annually.
Any recommended changes to committee charters are submitted to the
respective committees, and any changes that are approved are then
submitted to the Board for its approval.

Chairman and Managing Director
The Chairman is responsible for leading the Board, ensuring Directors are
properly briefed in all matters relevant to their role and responsibilities,
facilitating Board discussions, and managing the Board’s relationship with
the Company’s senior executives.
The Managing Director is responsible for implementing group strategies
and policies.
The Board charter specifies that the roles of Chairman and Managing
Director are not to be held by the same person.

The Board’s role
The Board’s role is to provide strategic guidance to the Company within
a framework of prudent and effective controls that enables risk to be
assessed and managed. The Board:
n sets the Company’s strategic aims;
n ensures that the necessary financial and human resources are
in place for the Company to meet its objectives;
n reviews management performance;
n sets the Company’s values and standards; and
n ensures that the Company understands and meets its obligations
to stakeholders.

Independent professional advice and access to company
information
Each Director has the right to access all relevant State Trustees’ executives
and information and, subject to prior consultation with the Chairman, may
seek independent professional advice from a suitably qualified adviser at
the Company’s expense.

Board processes
The full Board held 11 meetings in the year, plus strategy and extraordinary
meetings as needed to address specific significant matters that may arise.
During January, when a formal Board meeting is not scheduled, Directors
receive update reports from the Managing Director and Chief Financial
Officer.
The Chairman, Managing Director, and Company Secretary prepare meeting
agendas. Standing items include the Managing Director’s report, updates
from Board committee meetings, financial reports, strategic matters,
governance, risk management and compliance. All Directors receive Board
papers at least four days before meetings. Executives are regularly involved
in Board discussions and Directors have other opportunities for contact
with a wider group of employees.
Conflicts of interest are noted and declared at each Board meeting.
Directors make declarations of private interests to Government annually
with changes noted and declared at each Board meeting.

Governance review
During 2009/10, the Company undertook a major review of its governance
arrangements. The Company, the Board and its committees continue to
monitor governance arrangements on an ongoing basis. An external review
of Board effectiveness and performance is being undertaken in 2011.

Continuing Professional Development
The Board has a Continuing Professional Development (CPD) Policy to
encourage its Directors to further develop their skills and expertise through
high-quality learning and professional development opportunities.

5.2 Board committees
The Board has established a number of committees to help it perform
its duties and allow detailed consideration of complex issues. Its current
standing committees are the Audit, Compliance, Investment, and Remuneration Committees, as well as the State Trustees Australia Foundation
(STAF) Advisory Committee. Generally, committee structures and membership are reviewed annually. In the case of the STAF Advisory Committee,
members who are not State Trustees’ representatives are appointed for
three years.
Each committee has its own written charter setting out its roles and
responsibilities, composition, structure, membership requirements, and
the manner in which the committee operates. We review these charters
annually. We also regularly review the chairmen and members of each
committee as part of normal Board governance. During the year we made
changes to the Audit, Compliance, Investment, Remuneration Committees,
and STAF Advisory Committee, details of which are below.
The Board and all the committees (except STAF Advisory Committee) have
at least one closed session each year without management being present.
All Board committees have authority, within the scope of their responsibilities, to seek any information they require from any employee or external
party. They may also undertake any other activities consistent with their
charters.
The number of times each committee met during the year, and committee
members’ attendance record, are disclosed in the table of directors’
meetings in the Directors’ Report.

The Board has delegated responsibility for operating and administering
State Trustees to the Managing Director, the Corporate Leadership Team,
and senior management. Responsibilities are delineated by formal authority
delegations.
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Audit Committee

Investment Committee

The Audit Committee currently comprises four non-executive Directors.
The Committee’s Chairman is Patrick Burroughs, and its members are Julie
Elliott, Annette Broadfoot and Irene Irvine.

The Investment Committee comprises four non-executive Directors and
one executive Director. The Committee’s Chairman is Paula Allen and its
members are Julie Elliott, Anthony Fitzgerald, Annette Broadfoot and Bobby
Guttmann

The Audit Committee, at its discretion, invites the internal and external
auditors, Managing Director, General Manager Corporate Operations, and
Chief Financial Officer to attend its meetings.

The Investment Committee’s main responsibilities include:
n

The Committee advises on establishing and maintaining a framework of
internal control for managing State Trustees.
The Audit Committee is responsible for approving the internal audit
program conducted each financial year.

overseeing the actions of management in relation to investments, other
than for:
i financial accounting and reporting;
ii compliance with regulatory requirements and unit pricing policies;
iii compliance by the custodian with its contractual obligations;

The internal auditors help the Board ensure compliance with internal
controls and risk management programs by regularly reviewing how well
the compliance and control systems function.

n

overseeing management’s supervision of Russell Investments, Vanguard
Investments and Perpetual Investment Management;

The Audit Committee also holds an annual meeting with the internal and
external auditors without management being present.

n

considering on an annual basis, taking into account the views of the
Compliance Committee in relation to compliance issues, the suitability of
the appointed external service provider to continue to provide custodian
and investment administration services for the investments.

The Auditor General is the organisation’s official external auditor, but he
has contracted State Trustees’ external audit to Ernst & Young. The
company outsources the internal audit function to Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu.
The Audit Committee:
n oversees financial reporting and statutory accounts, and corporate
accounting policies;
n reviews, approves and monitors the system of internal controls;
n reviews the external audit plan; and
n in conjunction with the Compliance Committee sets an internal
audit program.

Compliance Committee
The Compliance Committee comprises four non-executive Directors and
one executive Director. The Committee’s Chairman is Irene Irvine, and its
members are Julie Elliott, Anthony Fitzgerald, Paula Allen and Josh
Bornstein.
Under its charter, the Committee reviews State Trustees’ compliance with
all relevant legislative, regulatory and contractual obligations, reviews and
monitors how State Trustees’ overall compliance framework is maintained
and implemented, and assesses and monitors business risks as they relate
to compliance.
The Compliance Committee’s main responsibilities include:
n reviewing management compliance reports and monitoring
management responses to compliance issues;
n meeting with the managed investments compliance plan auditors;
n monitoring the effectiveness and completeness of compliance reporting;
n monitoring and overseeing compliance with relevant legislative,
regulatory, and contractual obligations (of a non-financial or nonaccounting nature);
n reviewing and approving the process used to identify, monitor, and
manage compliance-related risks;
n ensuring that where compliance breaches are identified, appropriate and
timely reporting occurs and appropriate rectification strategies are
implemented on a timely basis; and
n reviewing and approving the design of the annual compliance program.

which are the responsibility of the Audit or Compliance Committees;

Remuneration Committee
The Remuneration Committee comprises four non-executive Directors.
The Committee’s Chairman is Julie Elliott and during the year its members
were Anthony Fitzgerald, Patrick Burroughs, Josh Bornstein and Bobby
Guttmann. On 23 June 2011, the composition was changed and the
Managing Director now attends by invitation and not as a member of the
Committee.
The Remuneration Committee operates according to its charter. It advises
the Board on general remuneration and incentive policies and practices,
and makes specific recommendations on remuneration packages and other
employment terms for the Managing Director and other senior executives.
Remuneration of executives, including the Managing Director, is
determined with reference to the GSERP.
The Committee also oversees management succession planning and
reviews and makes recommendations to the Board on superannuation
arrangements.

State Trustees Australia Foundation (STAF) Advisory Committee
The Committee’s Chairman is Annette Broadfoot and its current members
are Anthony Fitzgerald and Rhonda Galbally, Robert Knowles AO and
Lawrence St Leger, three non-director members with a strong background
in community services and philanthropy.
The role of the STAF Advisory Committee, which meets at least once a year,
is to recommend how the STAF income should be distributed to, or benefit
eligible charitable recipients. Grants for this purpose are generated from
income earned on donations where the donors have not made requests for
grants to specific charities.
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Statement of
financial position
as at 30 June 2011

Consolidated entity
		
Notes

2011
$000s

2010
$000s

Cash and cash equivalents
5
Receivables
6
Investments in managed investments 		
Advances to clients		
Prepayments 		

827
10,814
11,105
3,004
1,366

4,331
9,472
8,777
2,577
1,392

Total current assets		

27,116

26,549

7
4

26,609
3,918

25,160
3,530

Total non-current assets		

30,527

28,690

Total assets		

57,643

55,239

Payables
9
Income tax equivalent 		
Employee entitlements		

4,845
3
6,343

5,228
240
5,868

Total current liabilities		

11,191

11,336

Non-current liabilities			
Deferred tax liabilities
4
421
Employee entitlements		
1,595

469
1,304

ASSETS
Current assets

Non-current assets
Property, plant, and equipment
Deferred tax assets

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities

Total non-current liabilities		

2,016

1,773

Total liabilities		

13,207

13,109

Net assets		

44,436

42,130

Contributed equity
10
Reserves		
Retained profits		

13,102
21,717
9,617

12,462
19,843
9,825

Total equity		

44,436

42,130

EQUITY

The above statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Statement of
comprehensive income

for the year ended 30 June 2011
Consolidated entity
		
Notes

2011
$000s

2010
$000s

Commissions and fees		
Community Service Obligation revenue		
Regionalisation Transition Funding		
Other operating revenue
3

44,023
15,693
1,040
922

41,225
16,061
1,150

Total revenue		

61,678

58,436

Depreciation and amortisation expense
3
Lease rental charges – operating leases		
Audit expenses
19
Employee benefits expense		
Other expenses
3

3,225
1,083
169
44,342
12,132

2,928
1,173
147
42,452
11,059

Total expenses		

60,951

57,759

Profit from continuing operations
before income tax equivalent		

727

677

Income tax equivalent expense/(benefit)

4

154

386

Net profit		

573

291

n

Fair value revaluation of land and buildings		
Income tax equivalent (expense)/benefit		
Other comprehensive income/(loss)		
for the period, net of tax

1,093
–
1,093

1,251
(36)
1,215

Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the period		

1,666

1,506

Revenue from continuing operations

Expenses from continuing operations

Other comprehensive income
n

The above statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Statement of changes in equity
for the year ended 30 June 2011
Consolidated entity 2011

Contributed
Equity
			
Total equity at the start of the financial year

Asset
Revaluation
Reserve

Retained
Earnings

General
Reserve

Total

$000s

$000s

$000s

$000s

$000s

12,462

11,217

9,825

8,626

42,130

Profit for the period

–

–

573

–

573

Other Comprehensive income

–

1,093

–

–

1,093

Total Comprehensive income for the period

–

1,093

573

–

1,666

Transactions with owners in their capacity as owners					
Contribution from Owners
Profits transferred to / from General Reserve
As at 30th June 2011

640
–

–
–

–
(781)

–
781

640
–

13,102

12,310

9,617

9,407

44,436

Consolidated entity 2010
Total equity at the start of the financial year

12,462

10,002

10,578

8,146

41,188

Profit for the period

–

–

291

–

291

Other Comprehensive income

–

1,215

–

–

1,215

Total Comprehensive income for the period

–

1,215

291

–

1,506

Transactions with owners in their capacity as owners					
Dividends provided for or paid
Profits transferred to / from General Reserve
As at 30th June 2009

–
–

–
–

(564)
(480)

–
480

(564)
–

12,462

11,217

9,825

8,626

42,130

The above statements should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Statement of cash flows

for the year ended 30 June 2011
Consolidated entity 		

2011
$000s

2010
$000s

43,115
15,933
762
694
(13,402)
(43,687)
(827)

41,533
16,172
1,014
(12,004)
(42,313)
(685)

2,588

3,717

Proceeds from sale of property, plant, and equipment		
Purchase of property, plant, and equipment		
Proceeds from redemption of interests in
managed investment schemes		
Payments for interests in managed investment schemes		

7
(3,691)

31
(4,183)

644
(3,399)

7,190
(4,291)

Net cash flows used in investing activities		

(6,439)

(1,253)

347
-

(564)

Notes

Cash flows from operating activities
Commissions and fees received		
Community Service Obligation income received		
Regionalisation Transitional Funding		
Corporate Investment Income		
Payments to suppliers		
Payments to employees		
Payments of income tax equivalent		
Net cash flows from operating activities

13a

Cash flows from investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Contribution from Owners		
Dividends paid		
Net cash flows from/(used in) financing activities		

347

(564)

Net increase / (decrease) in cash held		

(3,504)

1,900

Cash and cash equivalents at the start of the financial year		

4,331

2,431

827

4,331

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial year

5

The above statements should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Notes to the financial statements
Note 1. Corporate information

Dividends and Trust Distributions

The financial report of State Trustees Limited (the Company) for the
year ended 30 June 2011 was authorised for issuance in accordance
with a resolution of the directors on 24 August 2011.

Dividends and Trust Distributions are recognised when the right to receive
the payment is established.

State Trustees is a State-owned for profit company. The State of Victoria is
the sole shareholder.
The nature of the operations and principal activities of the Group are
described in the directors’ report.

Note 2. Summary of significant
accounting policies
Basis of preparation
The financial report is a general purpose financial report, which has been
prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Corporations Act
2001, Australian Accounting Standards and other authoritative
pronouncements of the Australian Accounting Standards Board. The
financial report has also been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for
land and buildings and financial assets and liabilities held at fair value
through profit or loss, which have been measured at fair value.
The financial report is presented in Australian dollars and all values are
rounded to the nearest thousand ($000) dollars unless otherwise stated.

Impairment of assets
State Trustees Limited conducts an annual internal review of asset values,
which is used as a source of information to assess for any indicators of
impairment. External factors, such as changes in expected future processes,
technology and economic conditions, are also monitored to assess for
indicators of impairment. If any indication of impairment exists, an estimate
of the asset’s recoverable amount is calculated. An impairment loss is
recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds
its recoverable amount. Recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair
value, less costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash
inflows from other assets or groups of assets (cash-generating units).

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of financial position and cash
flow statement comprise cash at bank, cash in hand and short-term
deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of change in value.

Receivables

Compliance with IFRS
The financial report complies with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board.

Principles of consolidation
This is the consolidated financial statements for State Trustees Limited and
its controlled entity collectively referred to as the ‘Group’. The Statement of
Financial Position of the Parent is disclosed in note 15.
In preparing the consolidated financial statements, all intercompany
balances and transactions, income and expenses and profit and losses
resulting from intra-group transactions have been eliminated in full.
Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is
obtained by the Group and cease to be consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred out of the Group.

Revenue recognition
Revenue is recognised and measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable to the extent it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue can be reliably measured.
The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue
is recognised:

Commissions and fees
Commissions and fees are charged and earned pursuant to the published
schedule of fees. Revenue is recognised on an accruals basis when the
service is provided.

Community Services Agreement (CSA) revenue
Revenue is received from the State of Victoria under the Community
Services Agreement. This revenue is based on State Trustees providing
financial services management to the community as defined by the
agreement, and is recognised on an accruals basis when the service is
provided.

Grant income – Regionalisation Transition Funding
Under the requirements of AASB 120: Accounting for Government Grants
and Disclosure of Government Assistance, Funding is treated as income in
the same period as the relevant expenses recorded in the income
statement.

Interest revenue
Revenue is recognised as interest accrues using the effective interest
method. This is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial
asset and allocating the interest income over the relevant period using the
effective interest rate. This rate exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset.

Receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less an allowance for
impairment.
Collectability of trade receivables is reviewed on an ongoing basis at an
operating unit level. Individual debts that are known to be uncollectible are
written off when identified. An impairment provision is recognised when
there is objective evidence that the Group may not be able to collect the
receivable. Financial difficulties of the debtor, default payments or debts
more than 60 days overdue are considered objective evidence of
impairment.
Cash flows relating to short-term receivables are not discounted where the
effect of discounting is immaterial.
Advances to clients are subject to an approval process prior to issue and are
reviewed for impairment by divisional management.

Investments and other financial assets
Recognition and derecognition
Investments in financial assets are recognised initially at fair value. All
purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade date i.e.,
the date that the Group commits to purchase the asset. Financial assets are
derecognised when the right to receive cash flows from the financial assets
have expired or been transferred.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial Assets are classified at fair value through profit or loss. Gains or
losses on financial assets are recognised in profit or loss and the related
assets are classified as current assets in the Statement of Financial Position.
These financial assets are designated on the basis that they are a group of
financial assets which are managed and have their performance evaluated
on a fair value basis in accordance with the risk management and
investment strategies of the group as disclosed in Note 20. The Groups
financial assets consist of investments in unlisted trusts which are valued at
the redemption value per unit as reported by the manager of the
investments.

Receivables
Receivables are recorded at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method less impairment. They are included in current assets, except for
those with maturities greater than 12 months after balance date, which are
classified as non-current.

Controlled unlisted companies
Investments in controlled unlisted companies are measured at cost and
impairment is tested annually.
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Property, plant, and equipment

Employee benefits and provisions

Land and buildings are measured at fair value, based on periodic but at
least triennial valuations by external independent valuers, less accumulated
depreciation on buildings and less any impairment losses recognised after
the date of the revaluation.

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or
constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

Plant and equipment is stated at historical cost, less accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses. Such cost includes
the cost of replacing parts that are eligible for capitalisation when the cost
of replacing the parts is incurred. Similarly, when each major inspection is
performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and
equipment as a replacement only if it is eligible for capitalisation. All other
repairs and maintenance are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.
Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful
life of the specific assets as follows:
Buildings
Building refurbishment
Leasehold improvements
Furniture and fittings
Computers
Office equipment
Telephone system
System development
Motor vehicles

34 years
12 years
Lease term
13 years
4 years
7 years
5 years
3 years
5 years

There has been no change to the depreciation rates. Systems’ development
costs that will produce long-term company benefits are amortised and
depreciated over the asset’s useful life. The assets’ residual values, useful
lives and amortisation methods are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate,
at each financial year-end.

Land and building revaluations
Any revaluation increment is credited to the asset revaluation reserve
included in equity, except to the extent that it reverses a revaluation
decrement for the same asset previously recognised in profit or loss, in
which case the increment is recognised in profit or loss.
Any revaluation decrement is recognised in profit or loss, except to the
extent that it offsets a previous revaluation increment for the same asset,
in which case the decrement is debited directly to the asset revaluation
reserve to the extent of the credit balance existing in the revaluation
reserve for that asset.
Any accumulated depreciation as at the revaluation date is eliminated
against the gross carrying amounts of the assets and the net amounts are
restated to the revalued amounts of the assets.
Land and buildings were revalued to recoverable amounts subject to
existing use as at 30 June 2011 in accordance with AASB 116. In June 2011,
the directors obtained an independent valuation of the company-owned
land and buildings. The independent valuer was Collier International
Consultancy and Valuation Pty Ltd.

Disposal
An item of property, plant, and equipment is derecognised on disposal or
when we can expect no further future economic benefits from its use or
disposal.
Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with
the carrying amount. These are included in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income.
Upon disposal or derecognition, any revaluation reserve relating to the
particular asset being sold is transferred to retained earnings.

Payables
Trade and other payables are carried at amortised cost due to their short
term nature they are not discounted. They represent liabilities for goods
and services provided to the Group prior to the end of the financial year
that are unpaid and arise when the Group becomes obliged to make future
payments in respect of the purchase of these goods and services. The
amounts are unsecured and are usually paid within 30 days of recognition.
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Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s best
estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the
reporting date using a discounted cash flow methodology. The risks specific
to the provision are factored into the cash flows and as such a risk-free
government bond rate relative to the expected life of the provision is used
as a discount rate.

Employee benefits
Wages, salaries and annual leave
Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits and
annual leave expected to be settled within 12 months of the reporting date
are recognised in respect of employees’ services up to the reporting date.
They are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities
are settled.
Long service leave
The liability for long service leave is recognised and measured as the
present value of expected future payments to be made in respect of
services provided by employees up to the reporting date. Consideration is
given to expected future wage and salary levels, experience of employee
departures, and periods of service. Expected future payments are
discounted using market yields at the reporting date on national
government bonds with terms to maturity and currencies that match, as
closely as possible, the estimated future cash outflows.

Accounting for goods and services tax (GST)
Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of GST except where the
GST incurred is not recoverable. In this case, it is recognised as part of the
cost of acquisition of the asset or part of the expense item as applicable.
The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation
authority is included as part of receivables or payables in the Statement of
Financial Position.
Cash flows are included in the Cash Flow Statement on a gross basis and
the GST component of cash flows arising from investing and financing
activities, which is recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is
classified as part of operating cash flows.
Commitments and contingencies are disclosed net of the amount of GST
recoverable from, or payable to the taxation authority.

Income tax
Income Tax Equivalent
State Trustees is a state government- owned entity listed on the register of
the National Tax Equivalent Regime. As such, it is required to account for its
taxation liabilities in accordance with the Income Tax Assessment Act 1936,
and the Income Tax Assessment Act 1997 as required. All tax payment
obligations are administered to the Department of Treasury and Finance.
It pays tax as calculated in accordance with the respective taxation
legislation to the Victorian Government Consolidated Fund.

Deferred Tax Assets/Liabilities
The calculation of deferred tax assets/liabilities are measured in accordance
with Accounting Standard AASB 112. As such, State Trustees accounts for
the tax consequences of transactions and other events in the same way
that it accounts for the transactions and other events themselves. Thus, for
transactions recognised in profit or loss, related tax effects are also
recognised in profit or loss. For transactions and other events recognised
directly in equity, any related tax effects are also recognised in equity.
A deferred tax asset or a deferred tax liability will be recognised for all
temporary differences that arise for the difference between the carrying
value of the asset or liability and its tax value.
Deferred tax assets are the amounts of income taxes recoverable in future
periods in respect of deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of
unused tax losses and the carry forward of unused tax credits. A deferred
tax asset shall be recognised for the carry forward of unused tax losses and
unused tax credits to the extent that it is probable that future profit will be
available against which the unused tax losses and unused tax credits can be
utilised.
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Deferred tax liabilities are amounts of income taxes payable in future
periods in respect of taxable temporary differences.

Tax Consolidation
State Trustees has formed an income tax consolidated group consisting of
State Trustees Limited (STL) and STL Financial Services Limited (STLFSL).
STL is the head entity of the tax consolidated group.
The entities within the tax consolidated group have entered into a tax
funding arrangement and a tax-sharing agreement with the head entity.
Under the terms of the tax funding arrangement, STLFSL has agreed to
pay/receive a tax equivalent payment to or from STL based on the current
tax asset or liability of the entity. Such amounts are reflected in amounts
receivable from or payable to the other entity in the tax consolidated group.
The tax sharing agreement entered into between the members of the tax
consolidated group provides for the determination of the allocation of
income tax liabilities between the entities should STL default on its tax
payment obligations. No amounts have been recognised in the financial
statements in respect of this agreement as payment of any amounts under
the tax sharing agreement is considered remote.

Executor Services revenue accrual
Revenue is accrued for executor services over the estimated service period.
The time taken to administer an estate can vary due to complications or
other circumstances. The fees and charges can vary due to the nature of
estimates used for estate values and commission rates. Revenue is brought
to account, on a straight-line basis, over a nine-month period, except where
the estate is completed earlier and the remaining revenue is brought to
account.

Contributed equity
Ordinary shares of the company are classified as equity. Government
contribution received/receivable for which Department of Treasury and
Finance made a specific designation as contribution from owners are
treated as capital contribution without issuing shares.

Operating leases
Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the Statement
of Comprehensive Income on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

New accounting standards and interpretations
AASB 9: Financial Instruments (Effective from 1 January 2012)
AASB 9 includes requirements for the classification and measurement of
financial assets resulting from the first part of Phase 1 of the IASB’s project
to replace IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement
(AASB 139 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement). These
requirements improve and simplify the approach for classification and
measurement of financial assets compared with the requirements of AASB
139. Management does not expect this will have a significant impact on the
financial statements.

AASB 2009-11: Amendments to Australian Accounting
Standards arising from AASB 9 (Effective from 1 January 2012)
These amendments arise from the issuance of AASB 9 Financial
Instruments that sets out requirements for the classification and
measurement of financial assets. The requirements in AASB 9 form part of
the first phase of the International Accounting Standards Board’s project to
replace IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement.
Management does not expect this will have a significant impact on the
financial statements.

AASB 124 Revised: Related party disclosures (Effective from
1 January 2011)
The revised AASB 124 simplifies the definition of a related party. A partial
exemption is also provided from the disclosure requirements for
government-related entities. Entities that are related by virtue of being
controlled by the same government can provide reduced related party
disclosures. Management does not expect this will have a significant impact
on the financial statements.
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Consolidated entity
		
		

2011
$000s

2010
$000s

–
303
692
(73)
922

26
287
456
381
1,150

Depreciation			
n Building		
735
n Leasehold improvements		
501
n Furniture and fittings		
291
n Computer and office equipment		
1,529
n Motor vehicles		
121
		
3,177

709
432
128
1,520
117
2,906

Note 3. Other revenue and expenses
INCOME
Other revenue from operating activities
Profit/(Loss) on sale of fixed assets		
Interest received		
n Distributions from managed investments		
n Net gain/loss on financial instruments at fair value		
		
n
n

EXPENSES
Depreciation and amortisation

Amortisation
n System development		
		

48
48

22
22

Total		

3,225

2,928

5,060
3,764
1,146
1,001
525
106
530
12,132

4,574
3,364
1,238
946
491
–
446
11,059

Other expenses
Corporate		
Building and office		
n Marketing and advertising		
n Information system		
n Travel and motor vehicle		
n Loss on sale of fixed asset		
n Other		
		
n
n

60

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Consolidated entity
		
		

2011
$000s

2010
$000s

Profit/(loss) before tax		

727

677

Prima facie tax at 30%		

219

203

–
(49)
(16)
154

(10)
139
54
386

607
(436)
(17)
154

803
(539)
122
386

Note 4. Income tax equivalent expense

Tax effect of non-temporary differences:
Capital Allowance		
Imputation Credits and Other		
n Adjustment on prior year		
Total income tax expense attributable to operating profit		
n
n

Total income tax expense comprises movements in:
Current tax expense		
Deferred tax expense		
n Other adjustments		
		
n
n

Taxable and deductible temporary differences arise from the following:

Opening
Balance
$000s

2011
Consolidated entity

Charged to
income
$000s

Charged to
Equity
$000s

Closing
Balance
$000s

Deferred tax assets
9

(2)

–

7

2,490

266

–

2,756

Provision for accrued expenses

329

(25)

–

304

Accrued audit fees

29

31

–

60

n

Accrued Lease expenses

117

58

–

175

n

Carry forward capital losses

434

(55)

–

379

n

FBT

7

1

–

8

n

Fixed Assets

115

96

–

211

n

Unrealised losses

–

18

–

18

3,350

388

–

3,918

Unrealised gains on investments

(115)

48

–

(67)

Asset revaluation reserve

(354)

–

–

(354)

(469)

48

–

(421)

n

Provision for doubtful debts

n

Provision for employee entitlements

n
n

Deferred tax liabilities
n
n

Consolidated entity
		
		

2011
$000s

2010
$000s

Cash on hand and at bank		
Short term money market deposits at call		

725
102

791
3,540

Total cash assets		

827

4,331

Debtors		
Less: Provision for doubtful debts		

2,274
(24)

1,268
(30)

		
Accrued income		

2,250
8,564

1,238
8,234

Total current receivables		

10,814

9,472

Note 5. Cash and cash equivalents

Note 6. Receivables (current)
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Consolidated entity
		
		

2011
$000s

2010
$000s

Land
Revaluation of asset		

4,900
1,080

4,500
400

Net book value – land at fair value		

5,980

4,900

Opening value		
Additions at cost		
Revaluation of asset		
Elimination of accumulated depreciation		

12,400
42
13
(735)

12,250
8
851
(709)

		

11,720

12,400

Opening accumulated depreciation		
Depreciation for the year		
Elimination of accumulated depreciation		

–
735
(735)

–
709
(709)

Note 7. Property, plant, and equipment

Building

		
Net book value –building at fair value		

–

–

11,720

12,400

4,200
283
(542)

1,941
2,259
-

Leasehold improvements 		
Opening value at cost		
Additions at cost		
Disposals 		
		

3,941

4,200

Opening accumulated depreciation		
Depreciation for the year		
Accumulated depreciation on disposals 		

1,614
501
(429)

1,182
432
–

		

1,686

1,614

Net book value – leasehold improvements		

2,255

2,586

2,887
128

2,131
756

Furniture and fittings 		
Opening value at cost		
Additions at cost		
		

3,015

2,887

Opening accumulated depreciation		
Depreciation for the year		

1,613
291

1,485
128

		

1,904

1,613

Net book value – furniture and fittings		

1,111

1,274

17,170
1,268

16,026
1,144

Computer and office equipment 		
Opening value at cost		
Additions at cost		
		

18,438

17,170

Opening accumulated depreciation		
Depreciation for the year		

13,885
1,529

12,365
1,520

		

15,414

13,885

Net book value – computer and office equipment		

3,024

3,285

Opening value at cost		
Additions at cost		
Disposals at cost		

765
94
(25)

764
49
(48)

		

834

765

Opening accumulated depreciation		
Depreciation for the year		
Accumulated depreciation on disposals 		

273
121
(25)

199
117
(43)

		

369

273

Net book value – motor vehicles		

465

492

Motor vehicles
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Consolidated entity
		
		

2011
$000s

2010
$000s

Opening value at cost		
Additions at cost		

10,048
-

10,048
-

		

10,048

10,048

Opening accumulated ammortisation 		
Ammortisation for the year		

9,987
48

9,965
22

		

10,035

9,987

Note 7. Property, plant, and equipment continued
System development		

Net book value – system development		

13

61

Net book value – capital WIP additions		

2,041

162

Total property, plant and equipment		

26,609

25,160

Capital Gains Tax (CGT) has not been taken into account in determining the carrying amounts of land and
buildings. The land and buildings were acquired before CGT was introduced. The economic entity is not liable
to pay CGT except with respect to building refurbishments since the introduction of CGT.

Note 8. Reserve Fund – Trustee Companies Act
Under the Trustee Companies Act 1984 (the Act), a reserve fund of not less than half of one per cent of the
value of company-managed trust estates in Victoria must be provided (refer to Note 18). In the event that a
liquidator, receiver or manager is appointed, reserve fund monies are to be paid from the trustee company
according to Section 39(3) of the Act. Section 38 of the Act requires the company to place assets into a reserve
fund. These assets must be managed consistent with requirements of the Trustee Act 1958.
The asset revaluation reserve is used to record increments and decrements in the fair value of land and
buildings to the extent that they offset one another.
On 30 June 1999, in keeping with legislation amending the State Trustees (State Owned Company) Act 1994,
the corpus amounts held by Common Funds managed by the parent entity were paid to State Trustees and
transferred to a general reserve. The movement in the general reserve reflects a transfer of $781,000 in 2011
(2010: transfer of $480,000) from/(to) Retained Profits.

Assets comprising the Reserve Fund		
Land and building: Note 7		
Reserve fund requirements: Note 18		

17,700
9,407

17,300
8,626

Surplus		

8,293

8,674

Trade creditors, unsecured		
Other creditors, unsecured		
Staffing costs and packages		
Unearned revenue		

953
2,215
1,456
221

1,210
2,204
1,567
247

Total current payables		

4,845

5,228

(12,461,664 fully paid shares, 2010: 12,461,664)		
Contribution from Owners		

12,462
640

12,462
–

Total Share Capital		

13,102

12,462

Note 9. Payables (current)

Note 10. Contributed equity
Share capital		
Ordinary shares		

The entity has only one shareholder, the State of Victoria, which owns all the ordinary shares. This entitles
the holder to receive dividends and the proceeds on winding up of the company that is in proportion to the
number of, and amounts paid on, the shares held.
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Consolidated entity
		
		

2011
$000s

2010
$000s

Not later than one year		
Later than one year but not later than five years		
Later than five years 		

907
12,568
66,142

1,084
3,403
3,123

Operating lease commitments		

79,617

7,610

Note 11. Commitments
Operating lease commitments 		

As part of State Trustees regionalisation strategy our leasing commitments have increased from 2010, which
included the Southern Service Centre. In 2011 commitments also include our Footscray and Bendigo leases.

Operating expenditure contracted for is payable as follows		
Not later than one year		
Later than one year but not later than two years		
Later than two years but not later than five years		

349
1,059
527

355
1,028
583

Operating expenditure commitments		

1,935

1,966

Not later than one year 		
Later than one year but not later than two years		
Later than two years but not later than five years		

1,478
-

-

Capital expenditure commitments		

1,478

-

STL sought reimbursement of expenses incurred in a 		
client-related matter. Recovery of the expenses occurred
during the year due to the sale of client related real estate.

-

5

Total contingent assets		

-

5

Guarantee in favour of the ASX Settlement and
Transfer Corporation Pty Ltd (CHESS membership)		
Guarantee in favour of ASIC (AFS Licence)		

500
20

500
20

Total contingent liabilities		

520

520

Capital expenditure contracted for is payable as follows:		

Note 12. Contingent assets and contingent liabilities
Contingent assets		

Contingent liabilities: Performance bonds		

Note 13. Notes to the Statement of Cash Flows
a. Cash reconciliation
For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash includes cash at bank
and on hand, and short term money market deposits at call, as shown in Note 5.		

b. Reconciliation of net cash inflow from net profit after tax to net cash
provided by operating activities
Net profit after income tax		
Add/(less): non-operating activities		
n sale of fixed assets		
Adjustments for non-cash income and expense items:		
Depreciation and amortisation expense		
Changes in assets and liabilities		
n Income tax equivalent balance from the parent entity		
n Deferred tax liability		
n Deferred tax asset		
n Employee entitlements		
n Receivables		
n Prepayments		
n Payables		
Net cash inflow from operating activities		
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573

291

106

(26)

3,225

2,928

(208)
(48)
(388)
766
(1,050)
25
(413)
2,588

240
57
(596)
641
355
(544)
371
3,717

Note 14. Controlled entities
The consolidated financial statements at 30 June 2011 include the following controlled entities.
The financial year of the controlled entities is the same as that of the parent entity.

Place of
Controlled entity incorporation
STL Financial
Services Limited

Australia

Type of
shares

Book value of
parent entity’s
investment in $
2011
2010

Ordinary

5.2m

5.2m

Contribution to
the results in
% of shares held
$000s
2011
2010
2011
2010
100

100

310

386

STL Financial Services Limited has $5.2 million of paid up capital and this has allowed it to satisfy the
Australian Financial Services Licence requirements in respect of minimum net tangible assets. The State
of Victoria is State Trustees Limited’s ultimate parent.

Note 15. Parent Entity Information – State Trustees Limited
2011
$’000

2010
$’000

Current assets		
Non-current assets		
Total assets		

20,192
35,521
55,713

19,571
33,652
53,223

Current liabilities		
Non-current liabilities		
Total liabilities		

11,145
1,949
13,094

11,235
1,712
12,947

Issued capital		
Retained earnings		
Asset revaluation reserve		
General reserve		

13,102
7,800
12,310
9,407

12,462
7,971
11,217
8,626

Total shareholders’ equity		

42,619

40,276

Profit or loss (after tax) of the parent entity		
Total comprehensive income (after tax) of the parent entity		

610
1,703

305
1,520

500

500

20

20

Information relating to State Trustees Limited:

Contingent liabilities: Performance bonds
Guarantee in favour of the ASX Settlement and Transfer		
Corporation Pty Ltd (CHESS membership)
Guarantee in favour of ASIC (AFS Licence)		
State Trustees Limited (parent entity) has entered into the operating lease
commitments, operating expenditure commitments and capital expenditure
commitments as disclosed in Note 11 of these financial statements.

Note 16. Economic dependency
A significant portion of revenue is received from the State of Victoria via the Community Services Agreement.
A five-year agreement expires on 30 June 2012. This contract is between State Trustees Limited and the
Department of Human Services (refer to the Statement of Comprehensive Income).
The company has entered into a regional funding agreement with the State of Victoria via the Department
of Treasury and Finance. The funding arrangement will be in the form of capital contributions to fund capital
expenditure and government grant income to fund operational and transitional expenditure. The value of
the funding arrangement is $12.6 million starting in the 2010-11 financial year and ending in the 2012-13
financial year.
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Note 17. Related party disclosures
Key management personnel
State Trustees’ key management personnel include the directors and those executives
reporting directly to the Managing Director.

Directors
The following persons held the position of company director during the past financial year:
Julie A Elliott

Anthony G Fitzgerald*

Paula M Allen

Josh Bornstein (appointed 01/07/10)

Annette W Broadfoot

Patrick M Burroughs

Bobby Guttmann (appointed 01/07/10)

Dr Irene Irvine

*A G Fitzgerald is the Managing Director as well as a member of the executive. All of his remuneration is
included in the remuneration table for company directors.

Executives
The following held executive positions during the past financial year:
Anthony G Fitzgerald

Managing Director

Prue Willsford

General Manager, Corporate Operations

John Brennan

General Manager, Strategy and Network Development

Andrew Schuette

General Manager, People and Culture

Andrew Lloyde

General Manager, Client Operations

Angela Burton

General Manager, Personal Financial Solutions

Ross McDonald

General Manager, Client Services (Resigned)

Maurice Cruz

General Manager, Client Services (Acting)

Doug Sumner

General Manager, Sales and Marketing (Ceased)

Jacqueline Taylor

General Manager, Sales and Marketing (Acting, Ceased)

Vicki Hood

General Manager, Sales and Marketing

The remuneration of the company directors is tabled below.
2011
$000s

2010
$000s

576

529

Short-term incentives

70

44

Termination benefits

–

–

Base remuneration

Post-employment benefits

58

52

704

625

2011
$000s

2010
$000s

1,450

1,458

Short-term incentives

148

265

Termination benefits

113

194

Post-employment benefits

158

154

1,869

2,071

Total remuneration of directors
The remuneration of the key executives is tabled below.

Base remuneration

Total remuneration of executives

66

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 17. Related party disclosures continued
Principles used to determine the nature and amount of remuneration
The principles underlying our remuneration policies are outlined in the Corporate Governance Statement.
Remuneration is based on the Government Sector Employment Remuneration Panel (GSERP) framework.
This is structured as a total employment cost package, delivered as a mix of cash and prescribed non-financial
benefits at the executives’ discretion. Executives receive no more than 80 per cent of the Managing Director’s
base salary (as determined by GSERP). In addition, they are offered short-term incentives to the maximum of
20 per cent of total base remuneration.

Other transactions with key management or entities related to them
There are no other transactions with key management personnel in the financial year ended 30 June 2011.

Transactions with STL Financial Services Limited
The parent entity entered into the following transactions during the financial year with its controlled entity.
It advanced and repaid amounts on short-term inter-company accounts. These are repayable on demand.
Consolidated
entity

Parent
entity

2011
$000s

2010
$000s

2011
$000s

2010
$000s

Dividend payments received

–

–

347

399

Inter-company tax related receivables

–

–

176

88

All transactions with related parties are conducted on commercial terms and conditions.

Transactions with inveST Funds
Group Investments in the inveST Funds:
Consolidated
entity

inveST Diversified Income Fund
inveST Australian Equity Fund
inveST Property Fund

Parent
entity

2011
$000s

2010
$000s

2011
$000s

2010
$000s

8,408

6,675

3,378

1,557

993

720

405

166

554

438

219

101

1,150

944

452

221

11,105

8,777

4,454

2,045

inveST Funds

3,507

3,257

3,507

3,257

Common Funds

4,982

4,787

4,982

4,787

Total fees and commissions

8,489

8,044

8,489

8,044

inveST International Equity Fund
Total investment in inveST funds

Fees and Commissions received from:

State Trustees received fees in its capacity as the Responsible Entity of the inveST Funds. State Trustees
received fees in its capacity as Manager and Trustee of the Cash and Charitable Common Funds.

Directors’ interests
There are no Directors’ interests in any of the Funds managed by the Group.
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Consolidated entity
		
		

2011
$000s

2010
$000s

Note 18. Client assets under management and trusteeship
Total client assets under management and trusteeship were as follows. These amounts are not reflected in
the Statement of Financial Position as they are held in trust on behalf of the entities’ clients.
Investments, real estate, personal, and other assets		
1,027,930
917,856
Client investments in Common Funds		
853,380
807,078
Total Assets under Management and Trusteeship		

1,881,310

1,724,934

169
169

147
147

Note 19. Remuneration of auditors
Audit or review of the financial statements		
Total remuneration*		
n

*Total remuneration includes remuneration paid (or due to be paid) to the auditor of the parent entity and its controlled entities.

During the year, the auditor (VAGO) was paid for auditing the Common Funds and inveST Funds where
State Trustees Limited acts as Trustee and Responsible Entity. The total amount due and payable was
$279,684 (2010: $252,276), including the $169,150 disclosed above.
During the year, the auditor (Ernst and Young) was paid for auditing the State Trustees Australia Foundation
and State Trustees Australia Foundation Open Fund where State Trustees Limited acts as Trustee. The total
amount due and payable was $34,498 (2010: $15,750). These expenses are included in Note 3: Other
Expenses – Corporate.
During the year, the auditor (Ernst and Young) was paid for auditing the Residents Trust Fund where
State Trustees Limited acts as Fund Manager and Trustee. The total amount due and payable was $12,947
(2010: $14,650). These expenses are included in Note 3: Other Expenses – Corporate.

Note 20. Financial risk management
The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise cash and short-term deposits and financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss. The financial instruments’ main purpose is to generate a return on the Group’s
investments. The Group has various other financial instruments such as receivables and accounts payable
that arise directly from its operations.
The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are interest rate risk, credit risk, market risk, and
liquidity and cash flow risk. These risks are measured using a method that reflects the expected impact on the
results from reasonably possible changes in the relevant risk variables. Information about these risk exposures
at the reporting date, measured on this basis, is disclosed below. Information about the total fair value of
financial instruments exposed to risk, as well as compliance with established investment mandate limits, is
also monitored by Management and the Investment Committee and reported on a monthly basis.

Interest rate risk exposures
Interest rate risk arises from the possibility that changes in interest rates will affect future cashflows or the
fair values of financial instruments. The Group has established limits on investments in interest bearing
assets, which are monitored weekly.
The Group’s exposure to interest rates is limited to cash and short term deposits as disclosed in Note 5.
The Group has no borrowings.
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity of the Group’s Statement of Comprehensive Incomes to a
reasonably possible change in interest rates, with all other variables held constant.
The sensitivity of the Statement of Comprehensive Income is the effect of the assumed changes in interest
rates on:
n The interest income for one year, based on the floating rate cash and cash equivalent financial assets
held at 30 June 2011.
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Note 20. Financial risk management continued
Accounting Assumptions Variability of interest rates
The basis points sensitivity is based on the volatility of change in the interest rates over the past 10 years.

Consolidated
Entity

Equity – sensitivity of interest income
+100 bps

-100 bps

Post tax profit higher/lower
+100 bps

-100 bps

$

$

$

$

30 June 2011

37,249

(37,249)

26,074

(26,074)

30 June 2010

69,036

(69,036)

48,325

(48,325)

Currency risk
Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to
changes in foreign exchange rates. There is no significant direct foreign exchange risk exposure to the Group.
There is an indirect exposure to foreign currency through the Group’s investments in the inveST International
Equity Fund. This exposure is not deemed significant.

Credit risk
The Group’s credit risk involves counterparties failure to perform contractual obligations that will cause the
Group to incur financial losses. Concentrations of credit risk are minimised primarily by ensuring:
n Transactions are undertaken with a diverse range of counterparties, a large amount with the Victorian
Department of Human Services.
n A majority of transactions are undertaken with clients under our administration.
In addition, receivables balances are monitored on an ongoing basis with the result that exposure to bad
debts has not been significant. There is no material exposure to a group of counterparties that is expected to
be affected similarly by changes in economic or other conditions. The carrying amount of financial assets that
is recorded in the financial statements represents the maximum exposure to credit risk.

Allowance for impairment loss
Receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on 30-60 day terms. An impairment loss is recognised
when there is objective evidence that an individual receivable is impaired. An impairment loss of $24,000
(2010: $30,000) has been recognised by the Group.
Movements in the provision for impairment loss were as follows:

Consolidated entity
		
		

2011
$000s

2010
$000s

At 1 July		
Charge for the year		
Amounts written off or reversed		

30
28
(34)

50
49
(69)

At 30 June		

24

30

At 30 June, the ageing analysis of receivables is as follows:

Total
$000s

0–30 days
$000s

31–60 days
$000s

61–90 Days
$000s

+91 days
$000s

2011 Consolidated

10,814

10,477

54

21

262

2010 Consolidated

9,472

9,159

31

18

264

Other balances within receivables do not contain impaired assets and are not past due. It is expected that
these other balances will be received when due.

Liquidity and cash flow risk
Liquidity risk is the risk in either realising assets or otherwise raising sufficient funds to satisfy commitments
associated with the entity’s operations. Cash flow risk relates to the fluctuations in future cash flows from
holding financial instruments. Risk management guidelines adopted that are designed to minimise liquidity
and cash flow risk are:
n Ensuring substantial cash reserves are held by the entity with major Australian banks.
n Ensuring there is no significant exposure to illiquid or thinly-traded financial instruments.
n Applying limits to ensure that there is no concentration of liquidity risk to a particular counterparty
or market.
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Note 20. Financial risk management continued
Maturity analysis of financial assets and liabilities based on management’s
expectations.
To monitor existing financial assets and liabilities as well as to enable an effective controlling of future risks
State Trustees monitors risk through reporting that reflects management’s expectations of future settlement
of financial assets and liabilities. The risk implied from the values shown in the table below, reflects a balanced
view of cash inflows and outflows.

2011
Consolidated Entity

<6 months
$000s

6–12 months
$000s

1–5 years
$000s

>5 years
$000s

Total
$000s

Financial assets
Cash and deposits
Receivables

827

–

–

–

827

10,792

22

–

–

10,814

Advances to clients

2,554

450

–

–

3,004

Interests in inveST Funds
> Diversified income

8,408

–

–

–

8,408

> Australian equity

993

–

–

–

993

> Property

554

–

–

–

554

1,150

–

–

–

1,150

25,278

472

–

–

25,750

3,168

–

–

–

3,168

3,168

–

–

–

3,168

> International equity

Financial liabilities
Accounts payable

2010
Consolidated Entity

<6 months
$000s

6–12 months
$000s

1–5 years
$000s

>5 years
$000s

Total
$000s

Financial assets
Cash and deposits

4,331

–

–

–

Receivables

9,444

28

–

–

4,331
9,472

Advances to clients

2,335

242

–

–

2,577

Interests in inveST Funds
> Diversified income

6,675

–

–

–

6,675

> Property

438

–

–

–

438

> Australian equity

720

–

–

–

720

> International equity

944

–

–

–

944

24,887

270

–

–

25,157

3,414

–

–

–

3,414

3,414

–

–

–

3,414

Financial liabilities
Accounts payable

Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate due
to changes in market variables such as interest rates, foreign exchange rates, and equity prices. Market risk
is managed and monitored using sensitivity analysis, and minimised through ensuring that all investment
activities are undertaken in accordance with established mandate limits and investment strategies. This risk
exposure is managed by diversifying investments and managing to a conservative asset allocation model. 25%
(2010: 25%) of our financial investments are in Growth assets (exposure to listed domestic and international
equities through investment in managed investment schemes) and 75% (2010: 75%) are invested in defensive
assets (exposure to cash and fixed interest through investments in managed investment schemes).
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Note 20. Financial risk management continued
Equity price risk
Equity price risk is the risk that the fair value of equities decreases as a result of changes in market prices,
whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual stock or broader economic factors
affecting equity markets as a whole. Equity price risk exposure arises from the Group’s investment in
Managed Investment Schemes.
The effect on the Statement of Financial Position and Statement of Comprehensive Income due to reasonably
possible changes in market factors (as represented by the equity indices) with all other variables held constant,
is indicated in the tables below.

Accounting Assumptions Variability of equity price
The basis points sensitivity is based on the volatility of change in the respective benchmark indices over the
last 10 years.
Effect on
operating profit
$

Effect on
Statement of
Financial Position
$

+3%
-3%

252,248
(252,248)

252,248
(252,248)

+18%
-18%

99,720
(99,720)

99,720
(99,720)

+13.5%
-13.5%

134,052
(134,052)

134,052
(134,052)

+16.5%
-16.5%

189,694
(189,694)

189,694
(189,694)

Effect on
operating profit
$

Effect on
Statement of
Financial Position
$

+3%
-3%

200,250
(200,250)

200,250
(200,250)

+18%
-18%

78,883
(78,883)

78,883
(78,883)

+13.5%
-13.5%

97,150
(97,150)

97,150
(97,150)

+16.5%
-16.5%

155,858
(155,858)

155,858
(155,858)

Change in
equity price
%

Consolidated Entity
30 June 2011
inveST Diversified Income Fund
UBS Australian Composite Bond Index
inveST Property Fund
S&P ASX 200 Property Accumulation Index
inveST Australian Equity Fund
S&P ASX 100 Leaders Accumulation Index
inveST International Equity Fund
MSCI World Ex Australia Accumulation Index

Change in
equity price
%

Consolidated Entity
30 June 2010
inveST Diversified Income Fund
UBS Australian Composite Bond Index
inveST Property Fund
S&P ASX 200 Property Accumulation Index
inveST Australian Equity Fund
S&P ASX 100 Leaders Accumulation Index
inveST International Equity Fund
MSCI World Ex Australia Accumulation Index

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities
The financial assets and liabilities included in the Statement of Financial Position are carried at fair value.
The fair value is estimated using inputs other than quoted prices and the financial instruments are classified
as Level 2. Inputs are observable for the asset, either directly (as prices) or indirectly (derived from prices).
The fair values of the Group’s investments in unlisted unit trusts are valued on balance date at the redemption
price as published by the underlying Fund’s Responsible Entity.
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Note 21. Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions
The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts in the financial statements. Management continually
evaluates its judgements and estimates in relation to assets, liabilities, contingent liabilities, revenue and
expenses. Management bases its judgements and estimates on historical experience and on other various
factors it believes to be reasonable under the circumstances. The result of this forms the basis of the
carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results
may differ from these estimates under different assumptions and conditions.
Management has identified the following critical accounting policies for which significant judgements,
estimates and assumptions are made. Actual results may differ from these estimates under different
assumptions and conditions and may materially affect financial results or the financial position reported
in future periods. Further details of the nature of these assumptions and conditions may be found in the
relevant notes to the financial statements.

Taxation
The Group’s accounting policy for taxation requires management’s judgement as to the types of
arrangements considered to be a tax on income in contrast to an operating cost. Judgement is also required
in assessing whether deferred tax assets and certain deferred tax liabilities are recognised on the Statement
of Financial Position. Deferred tax assets, including those arising from unrecouped tax losses, capital losses
and temporary differences are recognised only where it is considered more likely than not that they will be
recovered, which is dependent on the generation of sufficient future taxable profits.

Bonus provision
The calculation of the bonus provision is comprised of 3 components:
n Executive contracts;
n Remuneration and benefit entitlements; and
n Conditions outlined in the Collective Workplace Agreement 2010.
Management bases its judgements and estimates on:
n Historical experience;
n Current financial and non financial performance; and
n Other various factors it believes to be reasonable under the circumstances.
A portion of these estimates are yet to be approved by the Remuneration Committee.

Valuation of investments
The Group has designated the classification of investments in unlisted trusts at fair value through profit or loss.
The respective movements in fair value are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. The fair value
of investments in unlisted trusts has been determined by reference to quoted redemption prices as reported by
the manager of these investments.

Note 22. Matters subsequent to the end of the financial year
Other than the current market volatility, no circumstance has arisen since 30 June 2011 not otherwise dealt
with in this report that has significantly affected or may significantly affect the operations of the company,
the results of those operations or the state of affairs of the company in subsequent financial years.

Note 23. Statement of operations by segments
The consolidated entity provides trustee and related financial services and operates predominantly
within Victoria.

Note 24. Registered office
State Trustees Limited is a company limited by shares, incorporated and domiciled in Australia.
Its registered office and principal place of business is:
State Trustees Limited
168 Exhibition Street
Melbourne, Victoria 3000
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Directors’ declaration
In accordance with a resolution of the Directors of State Trustees Limited,
we state that:
In the opinion of the Directors:
a The financial statements and notes of the consolidated entity are in accordance with the Corporations Act
2001, including:
i giving a true and fair view of the consolidated entity’s financial positions as at 30 June 2011,
and of its performances for the year ended on that date; and
ii complying with Australian Accounting Standards (including the Australian Accounting Interpretations)
and the Corporations Regulations 2001.
b The financial statements and notes also comply with International Financial Reporting Standards as disclosed
in Note 2; and
c There are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company will be able to pay its debts as and when they
become due and payable.
On behalf of the Board of State Trustees Limited

Julie Elliott Chairman of Directors

Anthony G Fitzgerald Managing Director

Melbourne, 24 August 2011
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Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Directors of State Trustees Limited
The Financial Report
The accompanying financial report for the year ended 30 June 2011 of State Trustees Limited which comprises the statement of financial position,
statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity, statement of cash flows, notes comprising a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information, and the directors’ declaration, has been audited. The financial report includes the consolidated financial
statements of the consolidated entity, comprising the company and the entities it controlled at the year’s end or from time to time during the financial
year as disclosed in note 14 to the financial statements.

The Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Report
The Directors of State Trustees Limited are responsible for the preparation of the financial report that gives a true and fair view in accordance with
Australian Accounting Standards, including the Australian Accounting Interpretations, and the financial reporting requirements of the Corporations
Act 2001, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial report that is free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
In note 2, the Directors also state, in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards that the financial report complies with International Financial
Reporting Standards.

Auditor’s Responsibility
As required by the Corporations Act 2001 and Audit Act 1994, my responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial report based on the audit,
which has been conducted in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Those Standards require compliance with relevant ethical requirements
relating to audit engagements and that the audit be planned and performed to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report is free
from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial report. The audit procedures
selected depend on judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether due to fraud
or error. In making those risk assessments, consideration is given to the internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of the financial report that
gives a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of State Trustees Limited’s and the consolidated entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of the accounting policies used, and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the financial report.
I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my audit opinion.

Independence
The Auditor-General’s independence is established by the Constitution Act 1975. The Auditor-General is not subject to direction by any person about
the way in which his powers and responsibilities are to be exercised. In conducting the audit, the Auditor-General, his staff and delegates complied
with all applicable independence requirements of the Australian accounting profession and the Corporations Act 2001. I confirm that I have given to
the Directors of the company a written independence declaration, a copy of which is included in the Directors’ Report.

Opinion
In my opinion,
a the financial report of State Trustees Limited is in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, including:
i giving a true and fair view of the company’s and the consolidated entity’s financial positions as at 30 June 2011 and of their financial
performance for the year ended on that date; and
ii complying with Australian Accounting Standards, including the Australian Accounting Interpretations, and the Corporations Regulations
2001.
b the financial report also complies with International Financial Reporting Standards as disclosed in note 2.

Matters Relating to the Electronic Publication of the Audited Financial Report
This auditor’s report relates to the financial report of State Trustees Limited for the year ended 30 June 2011 included both in State Trustees Limited’s
annual report and on the website. The Directors of State Trustees Limited are responsible for the integrity of State Trustees Limited’s website. I have
not been engaged to report on the integrity of State Trustees Limited’s website. The auditor’s report refers only to the subject matter described above.
It does not provide an opinion on any other information which may have been hyperlinked to/from these statements. If users of the financial report are
concerned with the inherent risks arising from publication on a website, they are advised to refer to the hard copy of the audited financial report to
confirm the information contained in the website version of the financial report.

DDR Pearson Auditor-General
Melbourne 26 August 2011
Level 24, 35 Collins Street, Melbourne Vic. 3000
Telephone 61 3 8601 7000 • Facsimile 61 3 8601 7010 • Email comments@audit.vic.gov.au • Website www.audit.vic.gov.au
Auditing in the Public Interest
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Copies of this annual report can be obtained by:
n Visiting our website at www.statetrustees.com.au
n Telephoning State Trustees on 9667 6444 or
1300 138 672 (local call cost from outside the
metropolitan area)

Location
Our registered office and principal place
of business is:
n 168 Exhibition St, Melbourne, 3000
> Phone 9667 6444

This annual report details
State Trustees’ business
performance for the
2010/11 financial year.
At State Trustees we are
committed to transparent
and open reporting.
The report provides a
concise summary of our
performance for the
financial year ending 30
June 2011. It reviews our
performance against our
strategic objectives and
records our financial
performance in accordance
with the requirements of
the State Trustees (State
Owned Company) Act
1994 and other regulatory
requirements.

Suite 22, 2nd floor,
40 Montclair Ave,
Glen Waverley, 3150
> Phone 9667 6444
n Shop 4,
157 Lonsdale St (corner of Foster St)
Dandenong, 3175
> Phone 9667 6444
n 74 Pall Mall
Bendigo, 3550
> Phone 1300 138 672
n Personal Financial Solutions
593 Little Bourke St,
Melbourne, 3000

For further information and to contact us
State Trustees’ website can be accessed at:
> www.statetrustees.com.au
n For the cost of a local call,
you can contact all our offices on:
> 9667 6444 or 1300 138 672
n

All case studies that appear
in this annual report are
based on real customer
experience. Names and
other personal details have
been changed in order to
protect confidentiality.
Any similarity between
a person’s name and
circumstances to the
scenario described here
is unintended and
coincidental.
State Trustees Limited
ABN 68 064 593 148
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